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Chairman’s Statement
EREERS

To our Shareholders

In 2010, the Group reported a loss of HK$356,457,000
as compared to a profit of HK$416,562,000 in last
year. The deterioration of the Group’s performance
is attributable to the recognition of a loss of
deemed disposal of associates of HK$537,615,000.
The Group recorded a core profit before share of
results of associates and major non-cash items of
HK$77,144,000 for 2010, a 12.58% increase from
HK$68,522,000 for 2009. Given the loss of deemed
disposal of associates is a non-recurring and non-
cash item and the equity attributable to owners of
the Company as at 31 December 2010 stood at
HK$1,344,663,000, we believe that such loss has no
material adverse impact on the business operations
of the Group and the financial position of the Group
remains sound.

Although the provision of management services
business generates a stable cash income to us, we
continuously review our business operation to ensure
a lean overhead and cost effective operating structure
to cope with the changing business environment and
to better compete for success in the years to come.

With a view to diversify our revenue sources, we
have spent considerable effort in expanding new
businesses. During the year, we entered into two
conditional agreements relating to the formation
of two joint venture companies, one of which was
relating to growing and sale of organic vegetables
in Mainland China and the other was relating to
property investment and development in Vietnam.
However, these two conditional agreements were not
completed, as the joint venture partners were not able
to fulfill certain conditions precedent.
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Following the 2008 financial crisis, investors are
allocating their wealth from equities and structured
products to real estate assets as they believe real
estate assets provide not only a stable rental income
in the short run, but also an opportunity for capital
gain in the long run. As such, we are optimistic about
the potential of property market and business. Despite
the lapse of the joint venture in property investment
and development business in Vietnem, our strategy in
expanding into property investment and development
business remains unchanged and we intend to expand
such business on our own. We are actively seeking
suitable property projects for the Group. In addition,
we are active in identifying other potential investment
targets and expanding new business activities for
distributing constant returns to our shareholders.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERARRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$78,200,000, a 4.67%
increase from HK$74,711,000 for the previous year.
Of the total turnover amount, HK$73,610,000 was
generated from provision of management services and
HK$4,590,000 was generated from sales of financial
assets. Loss for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to HK$356,457,000, whereas the Group
recorded a profit of HK$416,562,000 for the previous
year. The deterioration was mainly attributable
to a loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$537,615,000 which was partly offset by a gain
on early repayment of promissory note receivable
of HK$64,627,000 and a gain on early repayment of
convertible notes receivable of HK$75,962,000.

Cost of sales for the year amounted to HK$632,000,
which was wholly related to provision of management
services. Based on the turnover of HK$73,610,000,
the gross profit margin for provision of management
services was 99.14%.

Other revenue and other income increased by 45.70%
from HK$11,905,000 in the year ended 31 December
2009 to HK$17,346,000 in the year ended 31
December 2010. This increase was mainly attributable
to the receipt of a compensation of HK$4,938,000 for
a shortfall in service fee income guarantee given to
the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses (before depreciation and
impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
receivables) amounted to HK$13,943,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010, a 16.18% decrease from
HK$16,634,000 for the previous year. This decrease
was mainly attributable to the decreases in share-
based payment expenses in respect of consultancy
services and staff costs which were partly offset by
the increases in legal and professional fees and office
rental.

The directors reassessed the recoverable amounts of
management services agreements held by the Group
at the end of financial year of 2010 with reference
to the valuations performed by an independent firm
of professional valuers and, in light of the non-
achievement of the service fee income guarantee for
the 12-month ended 30 June 2010, an impairment loss
on intangible assets of HK$4,856,000 was recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
ceased to have significant influence over China Star
Film Group Limited (“China Star Film”, now known as
KH Investment Holdings Limited) and was deemed
to dispose of its shareholding interest in China Star
Entertainment Limited (“China Star Entertainment”). As
a result, the Group discontinued to account for China
Star Film and China Star Entertainment as associates.
The Group reclassified its investments in China Star
Film and China Star Entertainment as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale financial assets, respectively. Accordingly,
the Group recognised a loss on losing significant
influence of an associate of HK$21,028,000, a loss on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$537,615,000
and a loss arising on change in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets of HK$14,280,000. Please
refer to the section headed “Material disposals” below
for more details.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERARRS W

During the year ended 31 December 2010, China
Star Film and China Star Entertainment contributed
losses of HK$543,000 and HK$8,828,000 to the Group
respectively.

On 26 May 2010, the convertible notes receivable of
HK$100,000,000 and the promissory note receivable
of HK$100,000,000 were repaid by China Star Film
before their maturity. The Group recorded a gain
on early repayment of promissory note receivable
of HK$64,627,000 and a gain on early repayment
of convertible notes receivable of HK$75,962,000.
In addition, the Group reassessed the fair value
in respect of the conversion options embedded in
the convertible notes receivable as at the date of
repayment with reference to the valuation performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers and
recognised a gain arising on change in fair value of
HK$1,525,000.

In October 2010, the Group sold 6,750,000 shares
(the “Hantec Sale Shares”) in Hantec Holdings
Investment Limited (“Hantec”) to Mr. Man Kong Yui
at a consideration of HK$21,600,000. Taking into
account the fair value of the consideration paid and
the call option granted, the Group recorded a gain
on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$7,579,000. Please refer to the sections headed
“Material acquisition” and “Material disposals” below
for more details.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
recognised a gain arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$4,918,000, representing a gain of HK$3,150,000
arising from revaluating the Group’s stocks portfolio
at market prices and a gain of HK$1,768,000 arising
from the bonus issue of warrants by China Star
Entertainment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To reduce its finance costs, the Company early
redeemed the convertible notes of HK$72,000,000
payable to Well Will Investment Limited on 26 July
2010 and recognised a loss on early redemption of
convertible notes payable of HK$1,062,000.

Finance costs decreased from HK$8,086,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2009 to HK$3,041,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2010. It was mainly
attributable to the decrease in imputed interest
expense on convertible notes payable resulted
from the early redemption of convertible notes of
HK$72,000,000 payable by the Company on 26 July
2010.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
mainly funded its operations through a combination
of cash generated from operations, equity attributable
to owners of the Company, convertible notes payable
and issue of new shares. Equity attributable to owners
of the Company decreased from HK$1,371,044,000
at 31 December 2009 to HK$1,344,663,000 at 31
December 2010.

At 31 December 2010, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$989,625,000 (31
December 2009: HK$275,802,000). This increase
was mainly attributable to the repayment of loan
of HK$155,536,000 by /8 F F X {tE R AR A
Al (“Shanghai Shengping”), a subsidiary of China
Star Film, the early repayment of convertible notes
receivable of HK$100,000,000 and promissory note
receivable of HK$100,000,000 by China Star Film and
the fund raising activities conducted by the Company
raising net proceeds of HK$350,230,000.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had no borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERARRS W

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s net current assets
and current ratio were HK$994,811,000 (31 December
2009: HK$450,386,000) and 80.09 (31 December
2009: 40.48), respectively.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the capital
structure of the Company had the following changes:

(@) on 16 April 2010, the Company issued
26,420,000 new shares credited as fully paid to
Mr. Man Kong Yui for settling the consideration
of HK$18,000,000 for acquiring the Hantec Sale
Shares;

(b) on 29 April 2010, the Company issued 5,680,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.64 per share and
5,830,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.60
per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted to the directors and the Group’s
employees and consultants;

(c) on 5 May 2010, the Company issued 990,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.60 per share and
1,600,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.64
per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted to the Group’s employees and
consultants;

(d) on 10 June 2010, the Company issued 960,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.66 per share
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
to an employee of the Group;

() on 23 July 2010, the Company issued 45,920,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.55 per share by
way of placing of new shares under general
mandate raising HK$24,900,000 (net of expenses)
for general working capital of the Group; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

on 29 September 2010, the Company issued
826,584,147 rights shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.40 per share by way of rights issue to
qualifying shareholders on the basis of three
rights shares for every one existing share held on
3 September 2010 raising HK$325,330,000 (net
of expenses) for funding the loan facility to be
granted to a joint venture company.

Material acquisition

On 16 April 2010, the Group acquired the Hantec Sale
Shares from Mr. Man Kong Yiu at a consideration of
HK$18,000,000, which was settled by the Company in
issuing 26,420,000 new shares credited as fully paid
to Mr. Man. The fair value of the new shares issued
was HK$14,003,000.

Material disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group

had the following material disposals:

(@)

Annual Report 2010 —=

Following the resignation of Mr. Heung Wah
Keung, a then executive director of the Company,
as a director of China Star Film on 21 January
2010,

influence over China Star Film. Accordingly, the

the Group ceased to have significant

Group accounted for its investment in China
Star Film as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, instead of an associate, and
recognised a loss on losing significant influence

of an associate of HK$21,028,000.

On 13 Janury 2010, China Star Entertainment
issued 52,790,000 new shares upon the exercise
of shares options granted to its employees, which
caused a dilution on the Group’s interest in China
Star Entertainment from 29.61% to 28.94%.
The Group was deemed to dispose of 0.67%
shareholding interest in China Star Entertainment
and recognised a loss on deemed disposal of an
associate of HK$10,790,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEMWR R

(c)

On 11 February 2010, China Star Entertainment
issued 540,000,000 new shares pursuant to
a private placement causing a dilution on the
Group’s interest in China Star Entertainment
from 28.94% to 23.54%. The Group was deemed
to dispose of 5.40% shareholding interest in
China Star Entertainment and recognised a
loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$95,343,000.

On 11 August 2010, China Star Entertainment
issued 1,444,643,184 new shares pursuant to
the rights issue proposed on 8 July 2010. As
the Group did not take up its entitlement under
the rights issue, the Group’s interest in China
Star Entertainment was diluted from 23.54% to
15.69% and ceased to have significant influence
over China Star Entertainment. The Group has
accounted for its investment in China Star
Entertainment as available-for-sale financial
assets, instead of an associate, and recognised
a loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$431,482,000 and a loss arising on change in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$14,280,000.

On 27 October 2010, Mr. Man Kong Yui exercised
the call option, which was granted to him by the
Group under the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 31 March 2010, to require the
Group to sell the Hantec Sale Shares to him at
a consideration of HK$21,600,000. The disposal
of the Hantec Sale Shares was completed on 28
October 2010 and the Group recognised a gain
on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$7,579,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loan to Shanghai Shengping

In May 2010, Shanghai Shengping fully repaid the
loan of HK$155,536,000.

The loan was secured by a corporate guarantee given
by China Star Film, interest-free and had no fixed
terms of repayment.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2010, no assets of the Group were
pledged.

Commitments

At 31 December 2010, the Group had no material
commitments.

Exchange risk and hedging

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the majority
of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, no
financial instruments for hedging purposes have been
used by the Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2010, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2010, the headcount of the Group
was 10 (2009: 21). Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) amounted to HK$3,463,000 (2009:
HK$8,903,000 for continuing operations; HK$942,000
for discontinued operations). In addition to basic
salaries, provident fund and discretionary bonus, staff
benefits include medical scheme and share options.
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THERARRS W

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no revenue
was generated from the Group’s film distribution
business as the Group was not able to secure quality
films at reasonable prices for distribution.

Due to Europe’s sovereign debt and bank anxiety,
equity markets were volatile in the second quarter
of 2010, the Group has started to rebuild its stocks
portfolio by investing in equities of Hong Kong small
and medium capitalisation companies. Following the
cessation of significant influence over China Star Film,
the Group disposed of its entire investment in China
Star Film on market in May 2010. As the Group did not
take up any of its entitlement under the rights issue
proposed by China Star Entertainment, the Group sold
the nil-paid rights shares in China Star Entertainment
on market in July 2010. The Group reported a profit of
HK$4,590,000 for its sale of financial assets business
in the year ended 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s
provision of management services business generated
services fee income amounted to HK$73,610,000, a
21.69% increase as compared to the previous year.
The increase was mainly due to a strong growth in
Macau VIP gaming revenue in 2010. The directors
believe that the strong growth in Macau VIP gaming
revenue was a direct result of the Mainland China’s
economic growth coupled with a lending boom.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

RO
RBE-Z-—ZF+-A=+—HLFE-H

RAEEEELUNSEERMESERZ A&
T BAEEzERRTEBLEEE W -

ERENEREBHERRTZER  RED
BER-ZZE-ZEFFE-_ZHERE  FARECH
MBBRENEBPNEEARAERARE
HE  RIABHTEEEXEEAXENR
AEER-Z-ZSFRARTHE LHERERS

HEEF 2 2MRE - HRAKEILEABF
HESEEBMHR MRS  HAKER=
Z-ZFELtARTSELHEPREREZ AR

BRERERSG - AEEEE—_T-ZTF+-A
_+ ALFEERSHESHERERKE 2/EF
4,590,000 & T °

RBZ-ZE-ZETF+-_A=+-BLEFE"
FAEECREEERBEEBEERBERA
73,610,000/ 7t ° BREAF L MN21.69% ° B
BEMDEEHR -—_Z-SFRMEBEB/EW
WIERAYH - EBMEE > PERMSEE
R MEEEXIEEMN FBRMASEEZK
mAIEER ©

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTEE R




Management Discussion and Analysis

On 16 April 2010, the Group acquired the Hantec
Sale Shares at a consideration of HK$18,000,000
from Mr. Man Kong Yui and granted the call option
to Mr. Man to acquire the Hantec Sale Shares from
the Group for a consideration of HK$21,600,000
within one year from the date of completion. Pursuant
to the conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 31 March 2010, Mr. Man had given a dividend
guarantee for not less than HK$1,800,000 per annum
for the period from 16 April 2010, being the date
of completion of the acquisition, to 30 June 2012.
On 17 May 2010, Hantec notified the Group that
the registration of the transfer of the Hantec Sale
Shares had been declined pursuant to the articles of
association of Hantec. On 20 May 2010, a trust deed
was executed by Mr. Man as trustee in favour of the
Group as beneficiary, pursuant to which Mr. Man had
agreed to act as nominee for the Group in respect of
the Hantec Sale Shares and to hold the Hantec Sale
Shares on trust for the Group. On the same date, Mr.
Man gave an undertaking in favour of the Group that
he should procure the registration of transfer of the
Hantec Sale Shares within six months from the date
of the undertaking and, if he failed to procure the
registration within the prescribed time, exercise the
call option to acquire the Hantec Sale Shares from the
Group at HK$21,600,000. As Mr. Man failed to procure
the registration of transfer of the Hantec Sale Shares
within the prescribed time, Mr. Man exercised the call
option to acquire the Hantec Sale Shares from the
Group at HK$21,600,000 on 27 October 2010. Taking
into account the fair value of the consideration paid
and the call option granted, the Group recognised
a gain on disposal of the Hantec Sale Shares of
HK$7,579,000. The Group also recognised a dividend
income of HK$962,000 from the Hantec Sale Shares.
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THERARRS W

On 24 June 2010, the Group entered into a joint
venture agreement with Yiu Hing International Limited
(“Yiu Hing”) relating to the formation of a joint venture
company engaged in growing and sale of organic
vegetables in Mainland China. Pursuant to the joint
venture agreement, the joint venture company is
owned as to 50% by the Group and as to 50% by
Yiu Hing and each of the Group and Yiu Hing shall
contribute HK$30,000,000 in cash as capital. As the
joint venture company was not able to obtain the land
use rights for growing organic vegetables within 60
days from the date of the joint venture agreement, the
Company announced on 24 August 2010 that the joint
venture agreement was ceased and determined. The
capital of HK$30,000,000 contributed made by the
Group was returned to the Group and Yiu Hing paid a
compensation of HK$1,500,000 to the Group on that
date.

With a view to expand into real estate business
in Vietnam, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with Campbell Shillinglaw & Partners
(Vietnam) Limited (“Campbell”) and Victory Peace
Holdings Limited on 21 July 2010, pursuant to which
the Group and Campbell have conditionally agreed to
setting up a joint venture company, namely Victory
Peace Holdings Limited, to engage in the business of
conducting, development and investing into real estate
and related projects in Vietnam. The joint venture
company is held as to 90.1% by the Group and 9.9%
by Campbell. On the same date, the Company and
the joint venture company entered into the facility
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to grant a revolving credit facility
of HK$700,000,000 to the joint venture company to
proceed with its business of conducting, development
and investing into real estate and related projects in
Vietnam. The formation of the joint venture company
and the granting of revolving credit facility to the joint
venture company were approved by the shareholders
on 3 September 2010. As Campbell failed to obtain
the relevant approvals and consents from the Vietnam
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Government in relation to its acquiring a 9.9% equity
interest in the joint venture company on or before 31
December 2010, being the long stop date of the joint
venture agreement, the joint venture agreement has
lapsed with effect from 31 December 2010.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The directors believe that the key risks of 2011 are
slower-than-expected US GDP growth, intensified
European sovereign debt crises, supply disruption
from the Tohoku Earthquake and other troubles in
the Western economies and they may disrupt equities
markets over the course of 2011. The directors
continue to see market weakness as an opportunity
to the Group for building its portfolio for sustainable
growth. The Group continues to adopt a prudence
approach in investing equities to enhance the returns
to its shareholders.

Despite the fact that the Macau VIP gaming revenue
had a 70% growth in 2010, the directors believe that
the grow in gaming revenue will be smoother in 2011
as Mainland China has already launched tightening
measures to combat inflation. The directors expect
that the overall performance of the Group’s provision
of management services business will report a mild
growth in 2011.

Although the setting up of the joint venture company
engaging in the business of conducting, development
and investing into real estate and related projects in
Vietnam was lapsed, the Group’s business strategy in
expanding into property investment and development
business remains unchanged and the directors are
actively seeking suitable property projects for the
Group. The directors are also active in identifying
potential investment targets and expanding new
business activities for distributing constant real
returns to the Company’s shareholders.
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THERARRS W

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 January 2011, the Company and China Star
Entertainment entered into a subscription agreement
pursuant to which China Star Entertainment has
conditionally agreed to issue and the Company
has conditionally agreed to subscribe or procure
subscription for the convertible bonds in the
maximum principal amount of HK$650,000,000 in two
tranches at their face value. The convertible bonds
are unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum and
maturing on the fifth anniversary of the date of their
issue. The convertible bonds carry rights entitling
the Company to convert their principal amount
into shares in China Star Entertainment at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.08 per share (subject to
adjustment). The subscription of the convertible bonds
constitutes a major transaction and the conversion of
the convertible bonds constitutes a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Accordingly, the subscription and
the conversion of the convertible bonds are subject
to the notification, publication and shareholders’
approval requirements. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 9 February 2011 for details.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2010, except for:

(i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(i) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board periodically reviews and improves the
corporate governance practices and standards of
the Company with a view to continuously improve
the Company’s corporate governance practices by
assessing their effectiveness with evolving standards
to meet changing circumstances and needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosure required
under the Listing Rules.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all enquires, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the
Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 47 to 49.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
(appointed on 1 February 2011)
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(resigned on 1 February 2010)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(resigned on 1 February 2010)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
(resigned on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Lien Wai Hung
(resigned on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Hung Hing Man
(appointed on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Wan Shing Chi
(appointed on 25 May 2010)

Profiles of the directors as at the date of this report
are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 44 to 46.

There is no relationship between members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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EEELIRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEg )
31 Board meetings were held during the year. The FROCEFT=T—REETITE MIESZ
attendance of each director is set out below: HERERIIOT :
Number of
meetings attended
Name of director EEpZ HESERY
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (appointed on 18 January 2010) SREEE(R-2-FF-At\BEZMD) 30/31
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton (appointed on 1 February 2011) REBLE(R-E——-FE-f-REZF) 0/31
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy (appointed on 18 January 2010) REpExE(R-2-B5-A+\BEZR) 30/31
Mr. Heung Wah Keung (resigned on 1 February 2010) MERLE(R-Z-ZF_F-HEA) 2/31
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (resigned on 1 February 2010) RAFRZ L (R=F-FFE-F—AFEH{E) 2/31
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert HEMLE 24/31
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (resigned on 25 May 2010) f LWM(E@ - EERR-THARME) 9/31
Mr. Lien Wai Hung (resigned on 25 May 2010) EREFE(R-_2-ZFRA-THARAE) 9/31
Mr. Hung Hing Man (appointed on 25 May 2010) AENEE(RZE gﬁﬁﬂ THHEZM) 16/31
Mr. Wan Shing Chi (appointed on 25 May 2010) RREEEN-E-FERLA-THAEZM) 16/31
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EFERITBAR
OFFICER
Following the resignation of Mr. Heung Wah Keung NEESREERBBEZELZLIN - —ZF =4
and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany as executive directors —HABRERDABITESR  THELEEET
of the Company on 1 February 2010, Mr. Lei Hong ARABESEEIERTHRER - TR4EAEE
Wai has taken up the roles of the Chairman of FEERDG TACXEEREKZRAIEA
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the BEERLR -EESRA - BAHAB—AER
Company. Mr. Lei possesses essential leadership FERT Eﬁllyuﬁzﬁ@—lﬁﬂiﬁlkf B E &
skills and has extensive experience in corporate Ef—B2EE  UFREEBRBEIERKE
management and business development. The Board 2 RER A T%%ﬁx‘i °

is of the view that currently vesting the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership and allows for more effective and efficient
business planning and decisions as well as execution

of long term business strategies.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The term of office for the
non-executive directors of the Company is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s bye-laws. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by the
Board, as set out in the terms of reference, are
published on the Company’s website, www.eternityinv.
com.hk. The independent views and recommendations
of the four committees ensure proper control of the
Group and the continual achievement of the high
corporate governance standards expected of a listed
company. The chairman of each committee reports the
outcome of the committee’s meetings to the Board for
further discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and
one executive director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr.
Lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his associates will
involve in deciding his own remuneration.

In determining any specific package for directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
whether any part of the remuneration package should
be performance-based.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, three
Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
approve the remuneration packages of the proposed
directors and review the remuneration packages of

FMEEE(AE)

RBE-ZF-—ZFF+-_A=1t—-HLFER
FHMEESCHRITZRER  UHEEEES
ZHEHETERBNES 2HMWFE - FHEZ
HEREEIMT

the directors. The attendance of each member is set
out below:

Number of
meetings attended

Name of member RE®E HEGZRY
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (appointed on 1 February 2010) FEEXE(R-2-SF_F-BEZHA) 2/3
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (resigned on 1 February 2010) RBRzL(R=ZE—-ZF-F—HEHT) 1/3
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert HEMELE 3/3
Mr. Lien Wai Hung (resigned on 25 May 2010) EEEFEWN-ZS-TERA-THBERE) 1/3
Mr. Wan Shing Chi (appointed on 25 May 2010) FREEER-_Z-ZERA-THREZE) 2/3

Nomination Committee REZES
REZESH-BHUTESTHELRE UK
MEBYEHTESHEMRMAEERFRELE
MK e THELEBIREREESEIE -

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Wan Shing Chi.
Mr. Lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to
review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to
the Board regarding any proposed changes, identify
individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors. In addition,
the Nomination Committee makes recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, two
Nomination Committee meetings were held to
approve the appointment of executive directors and
independent non-executive directors. The attendance
of each member is set out below:

ERELIHRS

ExZE82#®)
REZES(A)

REZEECTEREATHRNESS R
B AERAR(BERE - MERER)

W EMEREH 2 SBOESSREEER %

ERERGERKRBESTERE ZAL Ak
EREABATHEESINUEESSRY

& UARFHMEB Y FAITES 2B - 1t
I REZESHRERESZALEHRZER
ES(LAEREIFERITHAR)EEFEEED
EETERHER -

RBE-Z-—ZFF+-A=1t—-HLFER
REZSSCETMAREE  UHEZEHT
EERBUFPITES - SREZHFETEH
I

Number of

meetings attended

Name of member RE%E LEERELY
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (appointed on 1 February 2010) THEEE(R-E-SFE-_F-REZH) 112
Mr. Heung Wah Keung (resigned on 1 February 2010) MEREE(R-E-ZF-F-HEHE) 1/2
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert HEMEE 2/2
Mr. Lien Wai Hung (resigned on 25 May 2010) BREXE(R-Z-ZELA-THARME) 2/2
Mr. Wan Shing Chi (appointed on 25 May 2010) FRELE(R-E-SELA-THHEZMA) 0/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Hung
Hing Man. Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The main function of the Finance Committee is to
review and approve banking facilities and financial
instruments to be granted or issued by the Company
for the Group’s needs, the provision of corporate
guarantees by the Company for its subsidiaries,
financial assistant of the Company and the provision
of financing to third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam,
Gilbert, Mr. Hung Hing Man and Mr. Wan Shing Chi.
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit function. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditors, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the audit
service provided, the auditing firm’s quality control
procedures, relationships between the external
auditors and the Company, and the independence of
the external auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, two Audit
Committee meetings were held to review with the
external auditors the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2009 and the unaudited
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2010, review the reports on internal control system
of the Group and discuss with the management and
the external auditors the accounting policies and
practices which may affect the Group and financial
reporting matters. The attendance of each member is
set out below:

ERELIHRS

ExZE82#®)
EREEG(A)

RBEZE-ZE-—ZEF+-A=+—HLFER
EBEREESCRITMAEE » UEIMNEZEAD
ERBE_ZTENF+TA=T—HLFEZ
RERMBERREBE-ZT—ZF<A=1AH
LEREAZARBERNBRE - EHAEER
HMEEAS o MEREETEE R IMNEZEEN
RARTEREERMBRESHEZETTEE
RER - BHEZHELHRIIMT :

Number of

meetings attended

Name of member RE%E LEERERY
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert EREE 2/2
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (resigned on 25 May 2010) MESEE(R-2-SFRA-THARHE) 112
Mr. Lien Wai Hung (resigned on 25 May 2010) ERERE(R-Z-ZERA-THARMA) 172
Mr. Hung Hing Man (appointed on 25 May 2010) AEXEE(R=2-EFEA-THHEZME) 1/2
Mr. Wan Shing Chi (appointed on 25 May 2010) FRARE(R-Z-ZFRA-THAEZM) 1/2

At the meeting held on 24 March 2011, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng be re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2011.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fee of HK$600,000 and non-audit services fee of
HK$1,023,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system is
designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk
of failure, and to achieve the business objectives of
the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable
assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

° Segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group

o Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

o Designing an effective accounting and
information system

° Controlling price-sensitive information

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management. Besides
the Group has also engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) to
conduct review and make recommendations for the
improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.

The review by the Consultant is conducted with
reference to the principles outlined in Internal
Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The assessment covers the
major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered
that the key areas of the Group’s internal control
system are reasonably implemented with room for
improvement. The Group shall use its best endeavour
to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal
control system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a year.
Interim and annual results are announced to keep
shareholders informed of the Group’s performance
and operations. The general meetings of the Company
provide a forum for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting
to discuss the progress of the Group’s business.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Finance Committee, or
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board Committee, are available to answer questions
at the shareholders’ meeting. Separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meeting on each
substantial issue, including the re-election of
directors. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.
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The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

CHANGE OF COMPANY’S NAME

By a special resolution passed on 29 June 2010, the
name of the Company was changed from China Star
Investment Holdings Limited to Eternity Investment
Limited and the Company adopted the Chinese name
KIEXRIEIRE AR DT for identification purposes only.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 35 and 18 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 50.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: Nil). An interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share
was paid on 1 November 2010 (2009: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31
December 2010 is set out on page 188.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

Details of convertible notes payable of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2010.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 56 and in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserves available for distribution

to shareholders at 31 December 2010 amounted to
HK$126,522,000 (2009: HK$141,004,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
(appointed on 1 February 2011)
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(resigned on 1 February 2010)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(resigned on 1 February 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
(resigned on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Lien Wai Hung
(resigned on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Hung Hing Man
(appointed on 25 May 2010)
Mr. Wan Shing Chi
(appointed on 25 May 2010)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, having been appointed
as director since the date of the last annual general
meeting, retires at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the
Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert retires from the
board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors
and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares and share options of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

EE2RBEN

BREERRBFASLERET2ESHE
AAAEERN - FANREECEERERMN)
B A TRIEZREEL

EERFETBRAERROKEREZ
R

RZE-ZEF+ZA=+—8 ' BEAQXFAR
BESRHBERMEISKEFEE 2 EMART
B RBARABRRBERAMABRBELHBITAES
ETESRZNWELETRIERA » XAFE
ERFTETHAEBRBEZHBEALIRAERLF
REEB LB RO RBREFEE RN
T

wR

a. ARAEKEE1EBTZEEK

Company
Percentage of
Number of issued the issued share
ordinary shares capital of the
held Company
Name Capacity BEZB BT HARATERIT
" E 54 ZREREAR BAEAEDL
Directors
2=
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 220,280,000 19.99%
TEREEE EREBA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 1,320,000 0.12%

BRgELE BEREAA

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTEE R




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (Continued)

Report of the Directors
EFERE

EERFETBRAERROKEREZ
W (E)

Long positions (Continued) HE(E)
b. Share options b. BRE
Number of share Number of

Name Capacity options held underlying shares
A 14 HEZBREHE HERHHE
Directors
5=
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 1,147,848 1,147,848
TIEELEE BERERBA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 1,147,848 1,147,848
PRIEZE B4 BERBEEA

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of the
directors, chief executive and their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations at 31 December 2010.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE
SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) B ESTE(E)
The following table discloses movements in the TREEBLAQARARFAZBRESE !

Company’s share options during the year:

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Adjusted 31 December
2010 Granted Exercised Lapsed for rights 2010
RZE-ZF during during during  issue(mote) ~ R-E-BE
Option type -B-H the year the year the year AREE  TZA=1-A
BREER HATE RERRH RERTTE RERXH (iit) BAITR
Directors and chief executive
ESRIEAHAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2002 45,546 - - - 4,939 50,485
SHELE 20078 30,013 - - - 3,254 33,267
2008 34,135 - - (34,135) - -
2009A 1,100,000 - (1,100,000 - - -
20098 220,000 - (220,000) - - -
2010 - 960,000 - - 104,096 1,064,096
1,429,694 960,000 (1,320,000) (34,135) 112,289 1,147,848
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy 2004 45,546 - - - 4,939 50,485
RiErt 20078 30,013 - - - 3,254 33,267
2008 50,142 - - (50,142) - -
2009A 1,100,000 - (1,100,000) - - -
20098 220,000 - (220,000) - - -
2010 - 960,000 - - 104,096 1,064,096
1,445,701 960,000 (1,320,000) (50,142) 112,289 1,147,848
Total directors and chief executive
EERITAUABAH 2,875,395 1,920,000 (2,640,000) (84,277) 224 578 2,295,696
Employees and consultants 2002 136,639 - - - 14,816 151,455
EERRER 2004 218,814 - - - 23,721 242,541
2007A 144,980 - - - 15,721 160,701
20078 698,717 - - - 75,765 774,482
2008 1,144,512 - - (1,144,512) - -
2009A 8,800,000 - (5,080,000) (3,720,000) - -
20098 10,570,000 - (6,380,000) (4,644,337) 454,337 -
2010 - 11,292,000 (960,000) - 1,120,338 11,452,338
Total employees and consultants
EEREMAH 21,713,662 11,292,000 (12,420,000) (9,508,849) 1,704,704 12,781,517
Total
st 24,589,057 13,212,000 (15,060,000) (9,593,126) 1,929,282 15,077,213
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Note: The number of outstanding share options is adjusted for
the rights issue as completed on 29 September 2010.

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 13 May 2010, the date of grant of
the 2010 options, was HK$0.632.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which the
share options were exercised was HK$0.723

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2010, the register of substantial R-ZBE—ZF+-_HA=+—H > XAGRESE
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to SREBRPIZEIB6IHRFEZETERRETLM
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance R THRREMBEEAQRTDEBITRAZ
shows that the following shareholders had notified FHEEZASAAT

the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions sy
a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the a. ARAEREEOOIETZEER
Company
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
shares held the Company
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity BEZERT ERARERT
REAE Wz gt EEREA BRAFDLE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 220,280,000 19.99%
THBEE ERBEA
Thought Diamond International Limited 1 Beneficial owner 106,000,000 9.62%
ERBEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled corporation 106,000,000 9.62%
REHLE REHAAZER
Asia Vest Partners VII Limited 2 Held by controlled corporation 1,294,921 9.95%
REHNT 2R
Asia Vest Partners X Limited 2 Held by controlled corporation 1,294,921 9.95%
REHAT 2R
Asia Vest Partners Limited 2 Held by controlled corporation 1,294,921 9.95%
REHAT 2R
Mr. Andrew Nan Sherrill 2 Held by controlled corporation 1,294,921 9.95%

HERLE ZEHLE S
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long positions (Continued)

b. Share options

Report of the Directors
EFERE

FERRE)
wR(E

b. BERE

Number of share Number of

Name of shareholder Capacity options held underlying shares
RERERE ) BEZEREZE HEROGRE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 1,147,848 1,147,848
TEERE EREBA

Notes: Bt

1. Thought Diamond International Limited is wholly 1. Thought Diamond International Limited

owned by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

2. The number of shares was adjusted for the share
consolidations that became effective on 30 April
2008 and 23 April 2009.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2010.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the directors of the Company on
the basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme is set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s turnover amounted
to HK$78,200,000. Of the turnover amount,
HK$73,610,000 was generated from provision
of management services and HK$4,590,000 was
generated from sales of financial assets. There was
no supplier to the Group.

The Group has provided management services to
three customers. In 2010, the largest customer and
the combined contribution from the three customers
accounted for 77.10% and 94.13% of the Group’s
total turnover respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group’s three customers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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Biographical Details of Directors
EFEREETE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 42, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has over eight years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was an
executive director of the Company during the period
from 28 September 2001 to 13 October 2005. He
was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He was the chairman and an executive director
of Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding Limited (stock
code: 8130, now known as Zhi Cheng Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market operated by the Stock Exchange, during the
period from 10 July 2007 to 24 June 2009.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, aged 45, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
daily operations of the Group. He has over 20 years
of experience in the area of corporate finance and
securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung was an
executive director of Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding
Limited (stock code: 8130, now known as Zhi Cheng
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market operated by the Stock Exchange,
during the period from 27 August 2008 to 24 June
2009.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 47, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 18 January
2010. Mr. Chan is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. He has over 15 years of
experience in accounting and financial control. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Administration Degree from the University of Ottawa
in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree in
Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. He was an independent non-
executive director of Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 692, now known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, during the period from 25 July 2007
to 2 July 2010. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Eternite International Company
Limited (stock code: 8351), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market operated by the Stock
Exchange, during the period from 21 September 2009
to 22 February 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 60, is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior
partner of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He joined
the Company in February 2002. He was a director
of Pok Oi Hospital in 1993 and a member of the
Kowloon West Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Bank Foundation District Community Programme
between July 1991 and November 1995. Mr. Tang
holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma
in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in
Macau.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EFEREETE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Hung Hing Man, aged 40, is a proprietor of a
certified public accountant firm and has over 14 years
of working experience in the sectors of corporate
finance, accounting, auditing and taxation. He holds
a Master Degree in Business Administration from
University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He
was an independent non-executive director of SMI
Corporation Limited (stock code: 198), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
during the period from 14 July 2009 to 8 December
2009. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Gamma Group Limited (stock code:
164) and Madex International (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 231), both companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung joined the
Company in May 2010.

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 40, has over 16 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB B & 0 F B A

Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

(Formerly known as China Star Investment Holdings
Limited)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 187, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
I ZHEN RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

BBE 2B E

I

CEERBEES ERERUERSHRAUHE
REBRRZER  UERBEREQTAED
HmER BTHRE  ITFEEMLAR - BS
TEHEMEMATIRARERTRERE LF
MEF  EERBELBSHMALEM 2R
REBEAETERIE ZEENEREER
REMETERIERANSEZRRE  F5
NGV BERRET T EEARMERMAME
BEZEE

1

ERSRETEFUINISEGSMBBRERAE
HERKBRSREECERER - BRAZER
AR FREE 2 HE - BREMEGESHBRR
HIR B AR (N H A FF R R 51 8)
Z Rk o EEHZE BTG - ZBEEE
BEAFDFERIEENFi2ESMBRE
BE2AMERE - LATERRARITEEEX
BF BYFEERATAMEERBERR
ZER  BREETEETETASTREZ
REN  EEMFEHEEZSEN IR
BRI R 2 B8 2 575 A AT o

EEHE BRHELKEEME  EEMES
RBEEBRDIRE -

Annual Report 2010 — & —TEE R




Independent Auditors’ Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

FelRR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E2-2F —EENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Brat FET FET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Turnover B 7 78,200 74,711
Cost of sales SHE A (632) (1,362)
Gross profit EF 77,568 73,349
Other revenue and other income  H1thUzs & HfbUg A 8 17,346 11,905
Administrative expenses THEX (14,366) (17,563)
Impairment loss recognised in CRABFLEERNE
respect of intangible assets 518 17 (4,856) (117,320)
Loss on partial disposal of O HEBE AT Z
an associate 518 18 - (280,020)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  HE&EKB LT ZEE - (48,868)
Loss on losing significant KEBERRERZLED
influence of an associate ZEiE 18 (21,028) -
Loss on deemed disposal of RIELHEBE AT Z
an associate g 18 (637,615) (6,629)
Share of results of associates iR E N REE 18 (9,371) 724,988
Gain on early repayment of REEZERBANEZ
promissory note receivable I & 19 64,627 -
Gain on early repayment of REEZERRTBEREEZ
convertible notes receivable U 5 20 75,962 —
Gain on disposal of HEHEEEREEZ
available-for-sale financial g
assets 21 7,579 —
Loss arising on change in AfHECZERMERE
fair value of available-for-sale ANEEEBESE
financial assets ZEEB 21 (14,280) -
Gain arising on change in fair RATVEFABRRZ
value of financial assets TREEZATE
at fair value through profit or BEEL 2 WE
loss 26 4,918 -
Gain/(loss) arising on change in FEWARBERERAE ZRIR
fair value of conversion options BERCAFEEDESE
embedded in convertible notes W (EE)
receivable 28 1,525 (64,542)
Gain arising on change in fair BEERQAFEFABERRZ
value of convertible note ARREEAFE
designated as at fair value BB ELE W
through profit or loss 29 - 55,244
Loss on early redemption of REBEREMTRREEZ
convertible notes payable g 33 (1,062) -
Loss on cancellation of THEMNTRREEZ
convertible notes payable 518 33 - (18,247)
Adjustment to cost of combination RBEFEETUEZ
in respect of an acquisition in BRI AR
prior year 38 - 103,434
(Loss)/profit from continuing REFESEEKZ
operations (E518), & F| 9 (353,053) 415,731
Finance costs MmEEH 10 (3,041) (8,086)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

Consolidated Income Statement

el

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREL AT (B18) &R (356,094) 407,645
Income tax (expense)/credit FRrE®i(Bk) K& 13 (363) 14,493
(Loss)/profit for the year from REFELSEER2AFE
continuing operations (B518) a7 (356,457) 422,138
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEK
Loss for the year from RECKRIEKEER 2
discontinued operations REEEHE - (5,576)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(HE) TH5R (356,457) 416,562
(Loss)/profit attributable to KABEE AEG
owners of the Company (B]), &R (356,457) 416,562
(Loss)/earnings per share sR(E58R) &R 14
From continuing operations REBFELSEEL
Basic and diluted HEARR#E HK(61.46) cents &l HK395.08 cents &l
From discontinued operations RECKRILEEET
Basic and diluted BEARREE —  HK(5.22) cents &l
From continuing and REFELERDKL
discontinued operations reE K
Basic and diluted BEARREE HK(61.46) cents &l HK389.86 cents &l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEZEBERE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

2010 2009
—E2-2F —EThEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Brat FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(BE) &R (356,457) 416,562
Other comprehensive (expense)/ ZAFEEHME2E(BEX),
income for the year (after tax): W (BR#E) :
Share of exchange reserve change FE{SEE A TE R
of associates HEEE 18 (83) (99)
Exchange differences on MEBNIEBZER
translating foreign operations =5 - 483
Total comprehensive (loss)/ AEEHDE
income for the year (BB]) k& (356,540) 416,946
Attributable to owners of the EAREBA
Company 1R (356,540) 416,946
The accompanying notes from an integral part of VEMS < MIEE B A AN AR e BT FE 3Rk 2 — EBAD o

these consolidated financial statements.

52 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{85 EEIZEBR AR Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTFF 3}




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMEBERXALE

At 31 December 2010 R=ZF—ZFF+=H=+—H

2010 2009
—E2-2F —EEAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRZE 16 1,441 1,838
Intangible assets EBFEE 17 334,681 339,537
Interests in associates REERR 2R 18 - 641,908
Promissory note receivable FE WA B 19 - 31,853
Convertible notes receivable FEUR AT RR =5 20 - 3,670
Available-for-sale financial AHEEEmEE
assets 21 53,892 172
390,014 1,018,978
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables g 5 EFRIE 22 5,859 6,022
Deposits, prepayments and RE - ANRIERHEAM
other receivables i e R 23 2,456 1,015
Loan to an associate LEENRER 24 - 155,536
Amount due from an associate FE Wi B i 1\ B FRIB 25 - 5,103
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRERZ
through profit or loss SREE 26 9,418 -
Conversion options embedded EWAREEERNSZ
in convertible notes receivable HBREER 28 — 18,316
Tax recoverable FE YR [ % 18 32 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEY 30 989,625 275,802
1,007,390 461,794
Total assets EEH#E 1,397,404 1,480,772
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable 7~2 T#EHS AEL
to owners of the Company RA K #E
Share capital B 31 11,021 1,881
Reserves EAE] 1,333,642 1,369,163
Total equity BELARE 1,344,663 1,371,044

Annual Report 2010 == —TFFf ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sk 8% 881& & 4R AT 53




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBERAE

At 31 December 2010 R=F—=Z=F+=-H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —EEhF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaE FHET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EtERREMENRIE 32 10,872 10,200
Trade deposits received EWESZE 477 477
Tax payable P& Bi 1R 1,230 731
12,579 11,408
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible notes payable FE{3 AT i IR =4 33 — 54,563
Deferred taxation IEAER IE 34 40,162 43,757
40,162 98,320
Total liabilities BEHAE 52,741 109,728
Total equity and liabilities BEREEHAE 1,397,404 1,480,772
Net current assets REBEETE 994,811 450,386
Total assets less current EERERRE
liabilities afE 1,384,825 1,469,364
The consolidated financial statements were approved SEBBRREN-_E——FE=F=-+HABE
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEeiENEETR YETIWATRES
25 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: Z .
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
TiEE PR G2 2=
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2010 R=2%

A E5 kL &

—EFE+f=+—f

2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ETNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR 2R 35 709,763 215,091
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments, and RE - FENE IEEZ
other receivables HihEWFKIE 23 192 101
Loan to an associate Fﬁ]%ﬁ@’i\\ﬁgfﬁi 24 - 155,536
Amount due from an associate FE U BE & N B FRIE 25 - 3,973
Tax recoverable FE Uk [B1 54 18 32 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBReEEY 30 15,078 40,027
15,302 199,637
Total assets EEH#E 725,065 414,728
EQUITY B AE
Capital and reserves attributable 7~2 T#EH AEL
to owners of the Company BRAR S
Share capital B 31 11,021 1,881
Reserves 15 36 621,173 308,509
Total equity R R 632,194 310,390
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities nREBAE
Accruals and other payables BB AR EMmESRIE 32 3,659 3,042
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B A B FRIE 37 89,212 43,721
92,871 46,763
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes payable FE{3 AT IR =4 33 — 54,563
Deferred taxation IRIER 18 34 - 3,012
- 57,575
Total liabilities BEAEE 92,871 104,338
Total equity and liabilities RERAEBEEEHE 725,065 414,728
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EBEZE (77,569) 152,874
Total assets less current EEAERABERS
liabilities 632,194 367,965

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai

£ R
Director

EE

—BEEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeERFEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDAREAES
(Accumulated
Share-based Convertible losses)/
Share Share Capital  Contributed Special payment notes Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HREFS [} (BitHE)/
B RtEE E5ER RéEs SRR -1 SEER Eiff REEA i

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
i FET AL & -2 FET &L & A FEL
(Note g) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f)
(Wa) (o) (o) Wza) (ze) (5

At 1 January 2009 N_ZENE-F-R 1952 - 19,644 568,022 (19,955) 32,050 34,692 71,284 186,534 894,423
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - - 416,562 416,562
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEE 2 ElE - - - - - - - 34 - 384
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ANALE - - - - - - - hil 416,562 416,046
Issue of new shares Bk 9,841 114,380 - - - - - - - 12421
Capital reorganisation (note 31 (g) REEE (W o1e)
- capital reduction — BaEl (9912) - - 9912 - - - - - -
~ set off accumulated losses against —{ERRRHE

contributed surplus Zithd - - - 9912 - - - - 9912 -
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HERRAARER - - - - 19,085 - - (71,703) (19,955) (71,703)
Share-based payment expenses WRBFARH 2B - - - - - 3729 - - - 379
Cancellation of convertible notes payable  H#EATARZSE - - - - - - (20774 - 20,174 -
Reversal of deferred tax upon cancellation  EEEHTERZEERR

of convertible notes payable (nofe 84 EERAKEH) - - - - - - 3,428 - - 3428
At 31 December 2009 and W%iﬂfﬁ‘ﬁ =t-AR

1 January 2010 ZZ-ZE-f-§ 1,881 114,380 19,844 568,022 - 35,119 17,346 (39) 613,827 1,371,044
Loss for the year REERE - - - - - - - - (356,457) (356,467)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEH2EER - - - - - - - 8 - 83)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE2ESBAE - - - - - - - 83) (356,457) (356,540)
Issue of new shares it v 24 13,729 - - - - - - - 13,993
Placing of new shares RENRA 459 2424 - - - - - - - 24,883
Exercise of share options fikBRE 151 11,792 - - - (2,559) - - - 9,384
Allotment and issu of rights shares RERRARRRS 8,266 318,168 - - - - - - - 326,434
Release on loss of significant influence % EHEEAT2

over an associate ERTENRER - - - - - - - 118 - 118
Share-based payment expenses WRBFARH 2BE - - - - - 2310 - - - 2310
Release on lapse of share options BREXNGER - - - - - (23.372) - - PRRI -
Early redemption of convertible notes ~ EREEENTRRES

pybe - - - - - - NE) - 3446 (1730
Reversal of deferred tax upon early REGERNTRREER

redemption of convertible notes BEELRE

payable (note 34) Hs4) - - - - - - 3401 - - 3401
Dividend paid (note 15) BRks W) - - - (33,089) - - - - - (33,063)
At 31 December 2010 HZE-E2f=1-A 11,021 482,493 19,844 534,959 - 12,158 - - 264,188 1,344,663
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeREEEHXR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

Notes:

(a)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
of the share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the 880 shares issued by Riche
(BVI) Limited (formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI)
Limited) prior to the allotment of 120 shares to Classical
Statue Limited and the amount arising from issue of share
by a subsidiary.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the net
amount transferred from the share capital, share premium
and to the retained profits/accumulated losses pursuant
to the special resolution passed at the special general
meetings held on 22 August 2003 and 30 April 2008.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the fair value and the contracted value of
consideration in respect of the acquisition of Shinhan-
Golden Faith International Development Limited during the
year ended 31 December 2006. The special reserve was
transferred to the retained profits when Shinhan-Golden
Faith International Development Limited was disposed
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each period is determined by spreading the fair value of
the options over the relevant vesting period (if any) and
is recognised as staff costs and related expenses with
a corresponding increase in the share-based payment
reserve.

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”, convertible notes issued are
split into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component at its
fair value which is determined using a market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debts and attributing to the
equity component the difference between the proceeds
from issue and the fair value of the liability component.
The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The equity component is recognised in the
convertible notes reserve until the convertible notes are
either converted (in which case it is transferred to share
premium) or the convertible notes are redeemed (in which
case it is released directly to retained profits).

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s
foreign operations from their functional currencies to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars)
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign
operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ket FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation from HREFBELLEER >
continuing operations BB AT (BEB) &R (356,094) 407,645
Loss before taxation from RECKRIEREEEK
discontinued operations MRELATE I8 - (4,975)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BE A (EE), &R (356,094) 402,670
Adjustments for: .
Adjustment to cost of RBEFEETIWE
combination in respect of an ZE P AR
acquisition in a prior year - (103,434)
Depreciation of property, plant WME -~ BERKE
and equipment e 423 533
Finance costs A& E A 3,041 8,086
Gain arising on change in fair EERAFEFTA
value of convertible note BaRzaBR
designated as at fair value EBRATEEZBHES
through profit or loss A& - (65,244)
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE  BER
plant and equipment Rz s - (20)
Gain on early repayment of REEZRWEANSE
promissory note receivable A& (64,627) -
Gain on early repayment of REEZEERTRR
convertible notes receivable Al § (75,962) -
Gain on disposal of available- HEAMHEESH
for-sale financial assets BEEZ2W&E (7,579) -
Interest income FEYA (7,039) (11,886)
Impairment loss recognised in 2R E 5 EWIE
respect of trade receivables WIEE 18 - 396
Impairment loss recognised in EREABLEERE
respect of intangible assets g8 4,856 117,320
Loss arising on change in fair AHEESRERE
value of available-for-sale NP EREBEEZ
financial assets g8 14,280 -
(Gain)/Loss arising on change EWABREZEERNES
in fair value of conversion ZHBRERE
options embedded in N ESBEEZ
convertible notes receivable (W) B (1,525) 64,542
Gain arising on change in fair BRAFEFTABRRE
value of financial assets at fair ZEMEEZAT
value through profit or loss BEBEL 2 WE (4,918) -
Loss on early redemption of REBOEMAIRR
convertible notes payable EEzEE 1,062 -
Loss on cancellation of TN IR EE
convertible notes payable ZEB - 18,247
Loss on partial disposal of an o HEBE AT Z
associate B8 - 280,020
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR ZEE - 48,868
Loss on losing significant KEBENTEKX
influence of an associate HE BB 21,028 —
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIEEHEBE QT Z
associate B8 537,615 6,629
Share of results of associates i NG 9,371 (724,988)
Share-based payment expenses UGB EXZT2
553 2,310 3,729

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeBARRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEAF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ket FET FET
Operating cash flows before EEESRHAI2KE
movements in working capital RERE 76,242 55,468
Decrease in trade receivables g S RIRIER D 163 421
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, 7e - BERER
prepayments and other H fth pE W =R 18 (3G hn)
receivables SR (1,441) 612
Increase/(decrease) in accruals Bt ERREMmES
and other payables FIEEM,CR) 672 (22,756)
Decrease in receipts in advance  FEUFRIER 2 - (175)
Decrease in amounts due to BETEE X RFIE
related company A - (5,703)
Cash generated from operations EEELECES 75,636 27,867
Tax paid 2IHIE (64) —
Net cash generated from RETHELEZRE
operating activities FE 75,572 27,867
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Adjustment to cost of combination RBEFEEWE A6
in respect of an acquisition in PR
prior year - 31,433
Interest received B RFE 2,992 —
Interest paid 2FFE (2,042) (3,723)
Repayment from loan to an EEBELNTER
associate 155,536 220,000
Repayment of amount due from FEWEE & N R RIE
an associate 5,103 -
Repayment of convertible notes BEERNIRRERE
payable (72,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEVXE BMEREE
property, plant and equipment Z TS FRIE - 39
Proceeds from disposal of HETHEEESRERE
available-for-sale financial Z TS RIR
assets 21,572 -
Proceeds from disposal of HERAFETA
financial assets at fair value BRixkzEmEEZ
through profit or loss FriSFRIR 5,931 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of EBpHEKE AT 2
an associate FriS I8 - 63,310
Loan to a related company BEATEX - (200,000)
Acquisition of an associate WiE — R E R A - (9,415)
Acquisition of financial asset at WEE R N FESTA
fair value through profit or loss BRkzemERE (6,453) -
Net cash outflow of disposal of HEMBARZES
subsidiaries R - (67,547)
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BERRZE
equipment (26) (236)
Net cash generated from RETEELEZRS
investing activities R 110,613 33,861
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeEBaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

2010 2009
—B-BF —EEhF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=4 FETT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETH
Issuance of new shares, rights BATHR D ~ AR
shares and exercise of share RITEBERE
options 360,701 124,221
Repayment of promissory note BERBANE
receivable 100,000 —
Repayment of convertible notes BERKITBRRKREE
receivable 100,000 —
Dividend paid to owners of the ENEATREEAZ
Company ’RE (33,063) —
Net cash generated from METERMEEZ2RS
financing activities HEE 527,638 124,221
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESESEYEM
equivalents HE 713,823 185,949
Effect of foreign exchange rate MNEHBEZE
changes - 483
Cash and cash equivalents at FAzEERES
beginning of year ZEW 275,802 89,370
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEASKRES
end of year SEY 989,625 275,802
Analysis of the balances of cash B RESZEBEYERE
and cash equivalents il
Included in cash and cash T AGRE B IEMRIR &
equivalents per the ZEERAE
consolidated statement of ZEW
financial position 30 989,625 275,802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR R M E

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal activity is investment
holding and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes
35 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$’000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs)

In the current year, the Group has applied
the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA that are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
1 January 2010.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part
of improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters
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ARDEZFEMEEE ik A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
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KRB ZEBEREREER > MERK
BARIRBELAR 2EEEXK D HEHER
HREMBERKRMEIS K18

ReUBHRRUTFBT(TEBT)Z5
BN/ ARRZUELER -

ERAHIREETERUBRESE
RI(TERMBREER )

REAFER  REBCEATIERS
SHER DS 2 H AT RAB TR &
AIAKRZEB(UTEMB T REETE
BMBHELEL ] WEHREBIBR
HEAR-Z-ZFF-A-HARKZE
SEMBFEEN °

BEMBRERY IR AFEMZEENBR
(&) HER 2k
BEMBREREL  FEMBREENESR2E
(&) A RACRENEEMZ
ERMBREEN 2 HE
— &6
BRMHREER  ERRHEZENER

F1R(BITR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

62

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

ERAHIREETERUBRESE
RI(TERMBREER D) (4)

HKAS 27 (as revised in ~ Consolidated and Separate BRGHEANETY HSERBUNBHRE
2008) Financial Statements (ZEENFLETT)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items EREHERNE9Y SEKETER

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions
(relating to the classification and
measurement of financial assets)
HKFRS 3 (as revised in  Business Combinations
2008)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to

EEABAEEY  EERLLENROTNZX
BMBTE)  BEBSRAEZAAR
HE)

BBUBREES ERAH
FIR(ZEBNE
FAPH))

BE(ERMBHRE OEEADRFRLEE

Owners REZEE)
— RBEITH
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial BERRBESSE BEBRERZZN — BRAY

Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Except as described below, the adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs has had no material
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied
in the current year prospectively to business
combinations of which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 January 2010 in accordance with
relevant transitional provisions. Its application
has affected the accounting for business
combinations in the current year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFIRKEBIEBUBREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A([EBMERELER |) (&)
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations (Continued)

ERMBREEAFIR(CEZENEE
1&7T) B & 6F (&)

FEREBMBRELEREIR(ZZEZEN
FREER) 2ZEWT ¢

The impact of the application of HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008) is as follows:

— HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a
choice on a transaction-by-transaction basis
for the measurement of non-controlling
interests at the date of acquisition
(previously referred to as minority interests)
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ share of recognised identifiable
net assets of the acquiree.

— HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) changes the
recognition and subsequent accounting
requirements for contingent consideration.
Previously contingent consideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if
payment of the contingent consideration
was probable and it could be measured
reliably; any subsequent adjustments to
the contingent consideration were always
made against the cost of the acquisition.
Under the revised Standard, contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date; subsequent adjustments to
the consideration are recognised against the
cost of acquisition only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a2 maximum
of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFITIRKEBIEBUBREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A([EBMERELER |) (&)

STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business ERAUBEBREENEIR(ZEENELR

Combinations (Continued) BRI ) B E Bt (E)

— HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires — BEMBRMEENEIFR(ZZEEN
acquisition-related costs to be accounted for FREFT)ETWEHERE KA EH
separately from the business combination, E¥BEHIFEAR —REBEHZ
generally leading to those costs being ERFANEERRIERRERAX
recognised as an expense in profit or loss i M EZE R A AIE A WEE A
as incurred, whereas previously they were R—EBD ABR ©

accounted for as part of the cost of the

acquisition.

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 3 (as revised KRB B BHREEAEIR(ZEEN
in 2008) on the acquisition during the current FRIET)HARHABETIRE 2 EHEK
period has been related to the acquisition- IBAEEKANER - ZERHEWIEIEE
related costs. It requires acquisition-related RAKEEREHIBEAR Btk > &K
costs to be accounted for separately from the EEREZRCERZERLIAELE
business combination. As a result, the Group has A FERZE AN BIE B W AR — 28
recognised these costs as an expense in profit or ABR o

loss, whereas previously they would have been
accounted as part of the cost of the acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2008) Investments in
Associates

The principle adopted under HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that a loss of control is recognised
as a disposal and re-acquisition of any retained
interest at fair value is extended by consequential
amendments to HKAS 28. Therefore, when
significant influence over an associate is lost,
the investor measures any investment retained
in the former associate at fair value, with any
consequential gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss. In addition, as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2010, HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2008) has been amended to clarify that the
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 in
relation to transactions where the investor loses
significant influence over an associate should
be applied prospectively. The Group has applied
the amendments to HKAS 28 (as revised in 2008)
as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010 in advance of their effective dates (annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010).

This change in policy has affected the accounting
for the deemed disposal of the Group’s interest
in China Star Entertainment Limited (“China
Star Entertainment”) and China Star Film Group
Limited (“China Star Film”, now known as KH
Investment Holdings Limited) in current year.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRAFIREEITEEUBREE

66

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2008) Investments in
Associates (Continued)

The difference between the carrying amounts of
the retained interests and their fair value of China
Star Entertainment and China Star Film were
HK$537,615,000 and HK$21,028,000 respectively
and have been recognised in consolidated
income statement for the year. Subsequently, the
retained interests in China Star Entertainment
and China Star Film have been reclassificated to
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
respectively.

Had the Group’s previous accounting policy been
followed, the carrying amount of the retained
interests in China Star Entertainment would
have been regarded as cost for the purpose
of subsequent accounting as an available-for-
sale financial assets investment under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and the movement in fair value
would have been recognised in consolidated
income statement. Under HKAS 39, when a
decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income shall be reclassified
from equity to consolidated income statement
as a reclassification adjustment even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised. The
loss reported for the current year has no material
effect as a result of the change in accounting

policy.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSSs) (Continued)

Save as described above, there is no material
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods by adopting the new and revised
HKFRSs, thus no prior period adjustment has
been required.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early adopted the following
new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010°

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters®

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets®

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related Party Disclosures*
2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments®
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

3. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as
appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 February 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2012

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in
November 2009) introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as
revised in November 2010) adds requirements for
financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

3. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, 3. EHEMERRERZHE REIEIT
AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS 28| - ST ARBREE
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial
assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the
significant change relates to financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the presentation of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.
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70

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will
be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013 and that the application of the
new standard may have a significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.

Save as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”), and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-
sale financial assets at fair value, conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivable and convertible note designated
as at fair value through profit or loss which
are carried at fair value. The preparation
of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

The Group’s books and records are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”)
as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Group in HK$.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operation policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any non-
controlling interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2010 —=

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

All significant inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Interests in associates
are accounted by the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group’s interest in associates
includes goodwill (net of any impairment

losses) identified in acquisition.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, interests in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

On acquisition of the investment any
difference between the cost of the
investment and the investor’s share of the
net fair values of the associate’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 3
Business Combinations. Therefore:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESTHBERBEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) #HREEE(E)

Associates (Continued)

(i)

Goodwill relating to an associate is
included in the carrying amount of the
investment. However, amortisation
of that goodwill is not permitted
and is therefore not included in the
determination of the investor’s share of
the associate’s profits or losses.

Any excess of the investor’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of
the investment is excluded from the
carrying amount of the investment and
is instead included as income in the
determination of the investor’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Where a group entity transacts with an

associate of the Group, profits and losses

are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

Dilution gains and losses in associates

are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.

Revenue from sales of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts became
unconditional.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Annual Report 2010 —=

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment of assets, or
whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated income
statement in the reporting period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, when the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant policy for that revalued asset.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its net selling price and value in
use. The net selling price is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use
is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of any asset and from its disposal at
the end of its useful life. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of asset that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss of goodwill is reversed only if the loss
was caused by a specific external event of
an exceptional nature that is not expected
to recur, and the increase in recoverable
amount relates the reversal effect of that
specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior periods.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to the consolidated income statement in the
reporting period in which the reversals are
recognised.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the reporting period.
Taxable profit is the profit for the reporting
period, determined in accordance with the
rules established by the taxation authorities,
upon which income taxes are payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary difference
can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other
than a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the assets to be recovered.

Annual Report 2010 — T —T4EE R

4. FESTHBEBMEE)

(e)

IR (AF

EEBEUREMBHRRPEER
BEZREERERRBER T
REESER R mER
THRAEEAEREGEEREE - B
EFEREBEESRMERREY
RFERRER MELEBBEEETZ
AREHRITMNAEREHNT 2B
ABBNERE - ZR-EXS
b EEEB(REHB)REXBS
PUNREN S EIAMEERE
BEMEI Rz ERZHATLERR
BUER  FAFEETEFR - BT
ERAZSELEERAE -

EEBEAEDNENBARREBE
RAREFEAZERFEREREM
‘R HEAKEUEFNERER
BOmE R EEAURERATRAE
RASEE BRI -

EEBEEE 2 REERE 2 HY
REWF » WHIRFTERER R A ER
BioE A W = 2 ER s ER40 E E R E A
e

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % E& 1% & B R A7)

79




80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the reporting
period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment has been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated
income statement in the reporting period
in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of property, plant and equipment,
using the straight-line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the assets.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the year.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise controlled
by the Company. Control exists when
the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In the
Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
are recognised initially at cost. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands
is recognised as an expense in the reporting
period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives from
the date when they are available for use.

Both the estimate useful lives and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories on finished goods are stated
at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method.

Inventories on stock of properties, which are
held for trading, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period
less selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in consolidated
income statement.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the four categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. The Group’s major financial
assets fall within the category of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets respectively and the
accounting policies adopted are set out
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, of which interest
income is included in net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables including trade receivables,
other receivables, loan to an associate,
amount due from an associate and time
deposits, bank balances and cash are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

4.

TESHTHREBRE#E)
() S&®MIAE)
BEEFIFE

BERANRZATESHEEZHHE
BARREERE2BENERAZ
Tk BRANERHERTESHE
ERBASEIAGRI T EHFH
FEEPE(WER) G RRREE
BA(BREAREBRANEREESD
ZIBEENHCHERER X5
BAREAMEERTHN) ZREF
BHZBERE -

EHTAYWARERA R
2 BEERRATEN BN
SWMEERS  HABRATHA
FUHRAE -

B RENRFE

EXREURERFITESHE
E - BEEEYRESHE  BY
BEXRERZTES LRE - RY)
FERARZEZHRHBR  ERRE
WRIE(BEE 2 BUWRIE - 2
FEWRE - MBERRER - B
BEQNRREREHRFR) » R|IT
FBHRRASTUERA R ERREE
BABREFAEENBEBERT
NERMEEREFEZISTEE)

E=-°

il‘_

Annual Report 2010 — & —TEE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Annual Report 2010 —=

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. Where
the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets equity
investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

For the purpose of recognising foreign
exchange gains and losses, a monetary
available-for-sale financial asset is treated
as if it were carried at amortised cost in
the foreign currency. Accordingly, for such
a financial asset, exchange differences
resulting from changes in carrying amount
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in statement
of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
on available-for-sale equity investments will
not reverse in subsequent reporting periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed
if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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5 & B 35 3R R B 6

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

(i) it is a part of an portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) () £BMIAE)

BAFPHEISABERZLHBEE

profit or loss (Continued) (&

Financial assets at fair value through

88

(ii)

(iii)

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms parts of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated at fair value through profit
or loss.

At end of each reporting period subsequent

to initial recognition, financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss are measured

at fair value, with changes in fair value

recognised directly in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise. The net gain or

loss recognised in profit or loss excludes

any dividend or interest earned on the

financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 & B 35 3R R B 6

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

(i) breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

(iii) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, an impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent reporting
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR R M E

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectable, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent reporting period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
equity investments are not be reversed
in the consolidated income statement in
subsequent reporting periods. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e M B R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are mainly
comprised of other financial liabilities which
include accruals and other payable and
amounts due to subsidiaries which fall within
the category of other financial liabilities.
These financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR R M E

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than financial
liabilities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MG HERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes payable

Convertible notes payable issued by the
Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes payable and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert
the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent reporting periods, the
liability component of the convertible
notes payable is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The
equity component, represented by the
option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement upon conversion or
expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contract
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting periods. The resulting gain or
loss from fair value changes is recognised in
profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative
host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic risks and
characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contacts and the host
contacts are not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. On derecognition of
a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in consolidated income
statement.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments
traded in active markets at the end of the
reporting period is based on their quoted
market price or dealer price quotations (bid
price for long positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not
listed in an active market, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include
discounted cash flows analysis, comparison
to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, option pricing
models and other relevant valuation models.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 & B 35 3R R B 6

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MG HERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Borrowings

(n)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when
the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets concerned to the Group. Assets held
under finance leases are initially recognised
as at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor,
net of interest charges, is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs
are charged to the consolidated income
statement over the term of the relevant lease
so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each reporting period.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

4.

TESHTHREBRE#E)

(m) &8

(n)

BEAOSEAFEIHNREEZR
ZRAER - REMARWE - 3
THRHERECREENEHEAE
BEEMMEZHERAN, BREXNTF
REA BB SLRRXSBE
RARkfAE EERBREZXZHR
ZBE URBFREEHR - &
HEZBERAIER  RERE
(R ZHRA)EEOEEME 2
EREZREAERNZENEEH
BREGES W@ RER -

R

RBNERREEERERE 2B KRB
NEBEOREBEAEE2HE
B GFIERERY - RIERIEM
WERZEERENZRAFEIE
BESREUABREERE)BER -
BHEABTZEREENRE
BAEXH)RGEEHBRRERRA
JIERMERNEAE RMEERK
REBHEBARSRERTR - KU
ERERHRE S 28R 2R EH
B o

Annual Report 2010 — & —TEE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Leases (Continued)

All other leases are classified as operating
leases and the annual rentals are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease
term.

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting date of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Translation of foreign currencies (o) MR (E)
(Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued) XEREE (1E)

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Transaction difference on non-
monetary items, such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the end of the reporting
period;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting
period.

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”’)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% to 10%
of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employees’ contributions subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of
relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of
the share options and restricted share
awards is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position will be made
over the remaining vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium accounts
when the share options are exercised and
when the restricted share awards are vested.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for
goods or services are measured at the fair
values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair received are recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made
to equity (share options reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Related party transaction

Parties are considered to be related if one
party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control or common
significant influences. A transaction is
considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Disposal groups classified as
discontinued operations

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operation, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Disposal groups classified as
discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale (as referred to in (i) above), if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the consolidated income
statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience

and other factors,

including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting

estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

reporting period are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in notes 4(h)
to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Information about the assumptions and
the risk factors on impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets is stated in notes 17
to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR R M E

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Annual Report 2010 — T —T4EE R

Trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that
the trade debtor balances are collectible
and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade debtor
balances is called into doubts, specific
provisions for impairments are made based
on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the
collectibility of trade receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our

results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the assets are acquired based on
historical experience, the expected usage,
wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes
in the market demands or service output of
the assets. The Group also performs annual
reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions.

For management purposes, the Group
currently engages in four operating divisions
(i) distribution; (ii) sub-licensing; (iii) sales of
financial assets and (iv) provision of management
services. The segmentations are based on the
information about the operations of the Group
that management uses to make decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Principal activities are as follows:
(i) Distribution Distribution of films

(i) Sub-licensing Sub-licensing of film rights

(i)  Sales of Sales of financial assets at
financial fair value through profit or
assets loss

(iv)  Provision of  Provision of management

management services to concierge
services departments of gaming
promoters appointed by

Macau casinos

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that operate different activities.
They are managed separately because each
business unit has different market and requires
different marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to
operate in different countries separately. Revenue
and results are attributed to countries on the
basis of the assets located.

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment
results, assets, liabilities, and other selected
financial information for the year by operating
segment is as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-_Z—ZFTF+-A=+—HLEE

Sales of  Provision of
financial  management

Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
B £t
8 ERRGR THEE EEEE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
&L TEr FEn FEn 22

Continuing operations REEEXH
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers REUNZP 2 WG - - 4,590 73,610 78,200
Results £4
Segment results for reportable segment BER P e+ - - 4,590 72,078 71,568
Other revenue and other income AfHEREMRA 17,346
Administrative expenses G (14,366)
Finance costs HEER (3,041)
Share of results of associates EEBEL %8 (9,371)
Profit before taxation and discontinued operations ~ HIBEIER D &1t EE£HAEA 68,136
Income tax expense iz B (363)
Profit for the year from continuing operations KOREEARERERESER
attributable to owners of the Company BorEgEA 67,773
Discontinued operations BALEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ALRAREARERECALLE
attributable to owners of the Company R AEEER -
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) RUEH (P REEEFREER) 67,773
Major non-cash items IEFRSER
— Gain on early repayment of promissory note — RREERUANEY
receivable i 64,627
— Gain on early repayment of convertible notes — RERRENTAR
receivable 36 75,962
— Gain arising on change in fair value of financial ~ — RAFEH AEREFZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss SREE N TERD
Eizha 4918
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial ~ — HETHHELHEEL
assets g 1,579
— Gain arising on change in fair value of — BUTRREERE 2
conversion options embedded in TRREE/ATERD
convertible notes receivable Efzba 1,525
— Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible  — CEREF AEHERFE
assets (4,856)
— Loss arising on change in far value of available- ~ — THHEZSHEEATE
for-sale financial assets SHELZFE (14,280)
— Loss on early redemption of convertible notes — REREENTARSE
payable BB (1,062)
~ Loss on losing significant influence of an — REBENAEATED
associate BB (21,028)
— Loss on deemed disposal of an associate —REHERENAER (537,615)
(356,457)
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FeMERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEHI(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-Z—FF+-A=+—HLEE

Sales of  Provision of
financial  management
Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
HE Rt
¥ EBREAE SHEE EERE ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
F&r F&r F&r F&r 7
Assets and liabilities BERGR
Assets BE
Segment assets for reportable segment Bzl
~ Hong Kong — &3 420 - 99,089 - 100,409
- Macau — B - - - 340,540 340,540
420 - 99,989 340,540 440,949
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEBEE 956,455
Consolidated total assets GRERLE 1,397,404
Liabilities B
Segment liablities for reportable segment PE Gk PRk =L
- Hong Kong — Bk (478) - (523) - (1,001)
- Macau — B8R - - - (40,162) (40,162)
“9) - 628) (40160 (41,163
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEBEE (11,578)
Consolidated total liabilties FRAfaE (52,741)
Sales of  Provision of
financial  management
Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
HE Rt
7 BREGE SHEE ERfH Ba
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Fér Fér 7 Fér 7
Other segment information HyapEs
Depreciation and amortisation fEREH
— continuing operations — FESERE - - 362 - 362
— unallocated expenses — FAREX 1
423
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial ~ FEXAHEE(SRIAR
instruments and deferred tax assets) EEREEERD)
— unallocated expenses — FAREX 2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZZhF+-HA=+—HLFE

Salesof  Provision of
financial  management

Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
#E it
87 ERROR SHEE EBEH #a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEn TEn TEr

Continuing operations KhERERE
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers REHNEE LG - - 14,220 60,491 74,711
Results £4
Segment results for reportable seqment By Ew 2 - - 14,220 59,129 73,349
Other revenue and other income AhEREHRA 11,905
Administrative expenses 0Ex (17,563)
Finance costs HEER (8,086)
Share of results of associates ElBeNR%E 724,988
Profit before taxation and discontinued operations ~ MIBHIER D &1t EE£HAEA 784,593
Income tax credit fisHiEs 14,493
Profit for the year from continuing operations KARREAEERERELSE
attributable to owners of the Company ERAEERT 799,086
Discontinued operations BALEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ALRAREARERECALEE
attributable to owners of the Company R AEEER (5,576)
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) RUEH(FREEEFREER) 793,510
Major non-cash items ITFESER
— Adjustment to cost of combination in respect of an  — REAEEETUHE 240
acquisition in prior year g 103,434
— Gain arising on change in fair value of convertble  — EERATE ABERZ
note designated at fair value through profit or TAREEZATERD
loss EElhs 55,244
— Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible — BEDEFEERE
assets i (117,320)
— Loss arising on change in fair value of conversion ~ — ERTRREERS 25 i
options embedded in convertible notes receivale  BEZATEEBEL 2FE (64,542)
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries — HEWBAFZER (48,868)
— Loss on deemed disposal of an associate —RELERENR R (6,629)
— Loss on partial disposal of an associate — BhERE LA ER (280,020)
— Loss on cancellation of convertible notes payable  — HEERATRREE 2K (18,247)
416,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEHEH)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZZhF+-A=+—HLFE

Sales of  Provision of

financial  management
Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
] o #E Rt
¥ EREME LHEE ERME &a
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 71 FEr 71 FEér
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E5l) (E5l) (E5l) (E5l) (E51)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Assets (]
Segment assets for reportable segment S YRR
~ Hong Kong — &8 33 15 137,199 - 137,507
- Macau — A - - - 345,559 345,559
313 15 137,199 345,559 483,086
Interests in associates NEELNT 2 ER 641,908
Unallocated corporate assets FOEEBEE 355,778
Consolidated total assets GREEAE 1,480,772
Liabilities 8f
Segment liabilities for reportable segment PEL Gk AL
— Hong Kong —&# - - (227) - (227)
— Macau — B8 - - - (40,744) (40,744)
- - Q1 @ o)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEBEE (68,757)
Consolidated total liabilties FREEAR (109,728)
Sales of  Provision of
financial  management
Distribution ~ Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
] - HE R
B EREME SHEE EEHRH Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 71 71 71 77
Other segment information HiyrPes
Depreciation and amortisation fER &S
— continuing operations —FELEER 2 - 7 - 449
— unallocated expenses — RARER 84
533
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial ~ FEFHBEE(SRIER
instruments and deferred tax assets) EEHEEERD)
~ continuing operations —GEfeEn - - 236 - 236

ETHRBFEESN  UFEEAFEZ
ERDEZE -

Certain comparative figures have been restated
to conform with the change of resources
allocation in current year.
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e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z ==

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were
no inter-segment sales in the year (2009: Nil).

Segment results represent the (loss incurred)/
profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ salaries, finance costs and income tax
(expense)/credit. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than goodwill. Assets used
jointly by segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which segments
are jointly liable are allocated in proportion
to segment assets.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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SR o 1ttJ3,3t P EERK D &
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— KEEHN REEEUIEEAZ
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B0 EREREN 2 Wi o B 5 ]

— BABREZERBEEN FIEE
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REMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
Geographical information ih B & B
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEEFZEREBRBEMALE - X5H
Macau. The Group’s revenue from continuing BRihBE D 2 REIFELEEBRENINE
operations from external customers and FrWakEHEEFERBEEZERF
information about its non-current assets by T -

geographical location are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REHMEF zWH FRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-%F ZZTNF Z2-TF “ZTNF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Hong Kong 5B 4,590 14,220 55,333 679,441
Macau B 73,610 60,491 334,681 339,537

78,200 74,711 390,014 1,018,978

Information about major customers EBRFrEEFz2EHR

Included in revenue arising from provision of BEHEERKEELE 273,610,000
management services of HK$73,610,000 (2009: BT(ZZFZ N F 60,491,000 7T )
HK$60,491,000) is revenue of HK$60,295,000 BREETAEBRAEFELEZ
(2009: HK$22,684,000) which arose from sales to |l £ 60,295,000/8 T(ZE T h F
the Group’s largest customer. 22,684,000 T) °

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTFF 4 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED K18 %88 1% BB R AR 117




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e M B R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

7. TURNOVER 7. EXH
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
REGEEY BRALEEXE &&
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

e-8F CTEAF CR-8F  CEEAF SR8 CREAS
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PR FEE FET FET FEE PR

Sales of financial assets at fair value ~ HERATEIFABERY

through profit or loss, net (note) SREE FRE) 4,590 14,200 - - 4,590 14,220
Rental income HEWA - - - 3,102 - 3,102
Service fee income REERA 73,610 60,491 - - 73,610 60,491

78200 74711

3,102 78,200 71,813

Note: BiEt -
The gains from sales of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFABERZEREENEEZK
through profit or loss are recorded in “turnover” on a net HIIRFREEN S X PR o
basis.
An analysis of sales of financial assets at fair HERATEFABRRZERMEEZ
value through profit or loss is as follows: pa i1
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Proceeds from sales of financial HERANFETABREK
assets at fair value through profit ZEMEEZFB
or loss I8 10,521 15,470
Cost of financial assets at fair value EQAFETABRZRZER
through profit or loss BEZHRA (5,931) (1,250)
4,590 14,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 8. HttlkmRHEMUWA
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
REGEEY BRALEEXE &&
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

e-8F CTEAF CR-8F  CEEAF SR8 CREAS
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PR FEE FET FET FEE PR

Other revenue bl
Interest income on loanto a related ~~ FEEAFDEH2FIE
company WA - 3972 - - - 3,972
Interest income on convertible notes ~ ERTBREE 2 FIS
receivable KA - 1,130 - - - 1,130
Interest income on bank deposits RTERZHERA 2,992 1 - 465 2,992 466
Compensation for lapse of joint venture A€ HEAN 2 Bl
agreement 1,500 - - - 1,500 -
Compensation for shortfall in service ~ BEBRARETEHE
fee income guarantee e 4,938 - - - 4,938 -
Dividend income REMA 3,504 - - - 3,504 -
Sundry income REWA 365 - - 47 365 47
13,299 5,103 - 512 13,299 5,615
Other income HetA
Imputed interest income on: THEEZEEFIE
— convertible notes receivable — BRTRRES 521 881 - - 521 881
— promissory note receivable — EWARE 3,520 5,901 - - 3,520 5,901
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  HEWE « BERRME
equipment i 6 - 2 - - - 20
4,047 6,802 - - 4,047 6,802
17,346 11,905 - 512 17,346 12,417
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 9. REEK(EE) HEA

REXBEBER) BFNENKRT IR

(Loss)/profit from operations has been arrived

120

after charging: g
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
RREEER BRLEEEE &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-%f “EINE “§-%f CEINE t§-%f EINE
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
77 Fér F&r 7 Fér 7
Auditors’ remuneration el 600 600 - - 600 600
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% BER R
equipment (note 16) wEHi16) 423 533 - 1,293 423 1,826
Impairment loss recognised in EEZEARIGE
respect of trade receivables HEBRNZ2Z)
fnote 22 - % - - - 3%
Share-based payment expenses in -~ REBRENRS
respect of consultancy services FaxfizRx 671 1,330 - - 671 1,330
Operating lease rentals in respect of  BEYE 2 ELHY
rented premises e 2,845 1,403 - 19 2,845 1,422
Staff costs including directors’ EIHA(BEEES
remuneration )
— salaries and other allowances ~ — HEREMEY 1,779 6,394 - 942 1,779 7336
— contributions to retirement — RFBAHE
benefits scheme {5 4 110 - - 45 110
— share-based payment — JRBFARH
expenses B 1,639 2,399 - - 1,639 2,399
3,463 8,903 - 942 3,463 9,845
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEE A
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BELEER BRLEEEE fa
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CR-%F CEEAE CR-BE CEEAF ZR-%F CEEME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&r F&r 77 Fér 77 T
Interest expense on secured bank loan AR AFREYEELAER
wholly repayable within five years ROEFNERR - - - 5,678 - 5678
Imputed interest expense on convertible ~ ERTRREE 2 {EEFE
notes payable B% 3,04 8,086 - - 3,04 8,086
3,041 8,086 - 5,678 3,041 13,764
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EEMS
The aggregate amount of emoluments payable FAENTFTARAEBZHMERES
to the directors of the Company during the year 1,135,000 j;t (= & & 1L & : 360,000
was HK$1,135,000 (2009: HK$360,000). The BILT) BE_Z-—ZZER-ZTFNEF
remuneration of each director for the years ended +TZA=+—BLEEE SREEZH
31 December 2010 and 2009 is as below: BN :
Contributions to
retirement Share-based payment
Fees Salaries and bonuses  benefit scheme expenses Total
Name of directors #3024 ik FeReL RARAEMR  ARBFAZAZER Eh)

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CR-RF CZENF CR-BF CEEAF C%-8F ZEEAF CR-FF CIOAF CE-%F CIRAE
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fér  TEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  TET  TEn

Mr. Heung Wah Keung (note ) &8 %4 (#:2i) - - - - - - - - - -
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany REARLL (i)

(note i) - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (note i SHERE W) - - 110 - 5 - 168 - 283 -
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy REELE ML)

fnote i - ) - 4 - 168 ") -
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert HERLE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (note ii)  fIESEE i) 47 120 - - - - - - 47 120
Mr. Lien Wai Hung (note i BEEE ML) 47 120 - - - - - - 47 120
Mr. Hung Hing Man (note iv) LB GE (Hitiv) 7 - - - - - - - 7 -
Mr. Wan Shing Chi (note iv) ERERE(Witi) 73 - - - - - - - 7 -
Total emoluments Heng 360 360 430 - 9 - 336 - 1,135 360
None of the directors of the Company has waived BEANDNEETNFRARETMAMNE -

any emoluments during the year.

Notes: BtEE -

()  Resigned on 1 February 2010. () R=ZZ—ZF_F—HBHME-

(i)  Appointed on 18 January 2010. iy R=Z-ZF—A+N\BEZE-
(i)  Resigned on 25 May 2010. iy R=ZB-—ZFERA-F+HHBBE-
(iv) Appointed on 25 May 2010. (ivy RZZE—ZFHRA-_THRAEZME-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2009: Nil) were
directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2009: five)
individuals are as follows:

12.

EBEME

RAEEREREHFALTESR  WMA(Z
ZEENF  E)BERAZEE  KEZ
MERN EXHMEI1HRE - BRT=A(=
ZEEANF AN ZHMEWT ¢

2010 2009

—E-E5 —EERE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FiET

Salaries and other allowances He Rk HAMERL 734 4,037
Contributions to retirement benefits RKIEFI 5+ 2IH 3%

scheme 29 42

Share-based payment expenses UERGBEAZF2HX 504 907

1,267 4,986

Their emoluments are within the following bands:

BEZMENFUTEHE :

Number of employees
EEA™
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # T £ 1,500,000 % 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % JT £ 2,000,000 % 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T £ 2,500,000 & 7T - 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

13. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 13. FI8H(FAX) R
Income tax recognised in the consolidated RiraREREBRZFE

income statement:

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
RELEXH BALEEXR &R

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“e-%F CEEAE CR-EE CIMAE CE-RF CREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  FET FEF FET  FET FEA

Current tax expense RHHERR (531) - - - (531) -
Deferred taxation (note 34) BB i 54) 168 14,493 - (601) 168 13,892
(363) 14493 - (601) (363) 13892
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% BE-_Z-ZEF+-A=+—HLHF
of the estimated assessable profit for the year B BEMNSHEATERE RN 2
ended 31 December 2010. 16.5% 5T & o
No provision for Macao Complementary Profits HRAEEMEMGTERBER - BH
Tax has been made for the year ended 31 E-E-ZEFEFTZA=T-HLEEFEX
December 2010 (2009: Nil) as the Group has no ERRMEZAEHELBE(ZZER
estimated assessable profits. F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

13. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 13. BB (X)) K% #)
(Continued)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the AEEBEATHEAEKRERAZKRBA
(loss)/profit before taxation per the consolidated (F518), & FHROT ¢

income statement as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
REEERR BALEERH &4
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
t%-%% CEENE t%-%% “IENE t%-%f CIENE

HKS'000 HK8 000 % HKS'000 % HK$'000 HK§000 HK§ 000 %
Tér Eft  TEr Bt TR Afw TEn Bt TEr BAK TEr AM

=
=
=

(Loss)/profit before A (B2
tavaton VR (5600 07645 - (479 (356,094 402470

Taxation at BfEhEE

income tax 16.5%(=

ateof 165%  BEAE:

0065 165%)HE

IBE 58,756 (165)  (67,261) (16) - - 821 165 58,756 (16.5)  (66,440) (16.9)

Effect of diferent ~ MERTEE

fax rates of ESEHE

subsidiaries DATRR

operating k298

in other

jurisdictions - -2 0.7 - - 474 95 - - 3 08
Tax effect of TERESH

income that BHRRT

isnottaxable  EHMAZ

ndetermining ~~ HHZE

taxable profits Q04 (M) 1425y 3.0 - - 30 67 04 (118 142867 35
Tax effect of TERESRH

expenses BHRTY

that are not itz

deductible in rze

determining

taxabe profts 0688 B (% (84 - - p26 (M8 688 B [0 (194)
Tax losses not yet - KD

recognised 3] (1,591) 05 B 09 - - - - (15 05 B (09
Under provisonin~ BAEER(E

prior year TR (32) - - - - - - - % B B -
Deferred tax EiiE

(expense)credit  (B%)/

iR 168 04) 1494 37 - - - - 168 04) 1494 37

Taxation (expense)  REEHE

credtfortie  (B%)/

Jear #5 0 01 4B 36 - I . I L I
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BR(EE) BF
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/ AABEBEAEHERERNREBE(E
earnings per share attributable to owners of the B) /BRIRETHISETE

Company is based on the following data:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/earnings for the year KABEEABEREE
attributable to owners of the (F518) &7
Company
From continuing operations REFELEER (356,457) 422,138
From discontinued operations RECKRILEEET - (5,576)
From continuing and discontinued HREIFELLER ORI
operations BT (356,457) 416,562
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEAF
’000 ’000
T Fi
Number of ordinary shares ZREREE
Weighted average number of Rt ESREARES
ordinary shares for the purpose of  (E1#8) BFIKFTA
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings ZE B e
per share EE 580,028 106,850
15. DIVIDEND 15. R E
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as FRABRBDIRZ
distributions during the year: BE
2010 Interim, paid - HK$0.03 —E2-ZFHHRE E2F
per share (2009: Nil) — 8RR0.03BRL(ZZZEH
&) 33,063 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

15. DIVIDEND (Continued) 15. RE (&
The directors of the Company do not recommend AAREEUTERREBE_ZT—F
the payment of any final dividend for the year F+_A=+—HILEFEZARARKRE(Z
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil). EZNEF 8| o
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BERRE
The Group rEE
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total

RENREE BOZRE RE  BRREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEr

Cost s
At 1 January 2009 R-EENE-F-8 2746 160 2,070 1,093 6,069
Additions e - - 236 - 236
Disposals hE - - (156) - (156)
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZESAETZR=T-BR

ZE-3f-R-§ 2,746 160 2,150 1,093 6,149
Additions HE - 2% - - 2%
At 31 December 2010 H-2-8F1f=1-H 2,746 186 2,150 1,003 6,175
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-H 2,025 60 1,047 82 3,914
Charged for the year KERER 240 2 21 46 533
Elimination on disposals HERYH - - (136) - (13)
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R-EENETZR=T-AR

“E-%3£-j-A 2,265 80 1,138 828 4311
Charged for the year KEEER 160 2 203 40 423
At 31 December 2010 RZE-S£4+2f=1-A 2,425 100 1,341 868 4,134
Carrying amounts RERE
At 31 December 2010 H-2-8F12A=1-H 31 86 809 225 1,441
At 31 December 2009 WZEENFTA=1-H 481 80 1012 265 1838
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B EE

The Group
AEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost R 2N
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009, R=-EBZEAF—A—A-
1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 —EEAF+ZA=+—H"
—E-FEF-A-HK
—E-FEF+=-A=+—H 456,857
Accumulated impairment R2iRE
At 1 January 2009 R=-ZBZENF—-HB—H -
Impairment loss recognised CRRREEE 117,320
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 REZZBZEAFFTZA=+—-HR
—E-ZF—-—F—H 117,320
Impairment loss recognised CRRREEE 4,856
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZFF+=-A=+—H 122,176
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—-ZF+=-A=+—H 334,681
At 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+ZA=+—H 339,537

The intangible assets represent the carrying
amounts of services agreements held by Rich
Daily Group Limited (“Rich Daily”), a management
services provider to the concierge departments
of gaming promoters in Macau. The intangible
assets have indefinite useful lives and no
amortisation have been made.

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTFFH
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. B EE (&)

128

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the
directors of the Company re-assessed the
recoverable amounts of the services agreements
with reference to the valuation performed by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professional valuers, and an impairment
loss of HK$4,856,000 was recognised (2009:
HK$117,320,000).

The recoverable amounts of the services
agreements were assessed by reference to value-
in-use calculation. A discount rate of 21.23% per
annum (2009: 19.12%) was applied in the value-
in-use model which uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts approved by the
directors of the Company covering a five-year
period. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved for the preparation of the
cash flow projections for the period covered by
the forecast. Key assumptions include gross
margin and growth rate which are determined
by the management of the Group based on
its expectation for market development. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the industry.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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RREIITEBRZIEERE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RNEtE QTR 2=

The Group
rEE

2010 2009

—EB-BF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

At 1 January m—A—H 641,908 266,778

Excess of acquirer’s interest W B 75 PA B & A B AT 5 A

in fair value of associates’ FEELATFEZER
identifiable net assets over cost B A 2 B RE

of acquisition (notes a(i) and b(i)) (Btata(i) & b(i)) - 702,500

Partial disposal of an associate M HEBRE AT ZEER

(note b(ii) (B15E b(ii)) - (343,130)
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIEHEBRE AT ZER

associate (notes a(iii), b(iv), b(v) (Btat a(iii) ~ b(iv) ~ b(v) &

and b(vi) bi) (537,615) (6,629)
Loss on losing significant influence kEHENTERFEHZ

of an associate (note a(v)) B8 (BraF av)) (21,028) -
Reclassification to financial assets EHDEEEAFEA

at fair value through profit or loss EBRERRZEMEE

(note a(vi)) (Btat a(vi)) (5,929) -
Reclassification to available-for- EfEEAMHEESH

sale financial assets (note 21) BE(KFZ21) (68,000) -
Share of exchange reserve change FE{GE{¢E N FIE B #E

of associates (83) (99)
Release of foreign exchange R BRINE 18

reserve 118 -
Share of post-acquisition results BB RES

(notes a(v) and b(vi)) (Btat a(v) & b(vi)) (9,371) 22,488
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - 641,908
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REt&E N Rl 2= (&)
At 31 December 2010, the Group did not have R-ZBE-—ZF+=-A=+—H ' KX&EE
any interests in associates. WA AR E N B 2 o
At 31 December 2009, the Group had interests in A—ZEZBEARE+_BA=1+—H x&EH
the following associates: RUTEBEATDHEERER
Principal Proportion
Country/place place of Class of of voting Principal
Name of associate of incorporation operation shares held power held activities
FEREE
BELAEH SMAUER %Y TEEESY FERORN 2HH  TEEE
China Star Film Group Limited  the Cayman Islands Hong Kong  Ordinary 15.66% Investment holding
(“CSFGL”, now known as KH and continued in BE EBER RERK
Investment Holdings Limited) Bermuda
FEEEFEBAERLH HEHRE  URARE
(TCSFGL] RBEERE &
ERBERATF)
China Star Entertainment Bermuda Hong Kong  Ordinary 29.61% Investment holding
Limited (“CSEL") BRE E# EER REZR
hE2&EERAE(TCSEL])
Notes: BtEt -
(a) CSFGL (@) CSFGL
() On 8 April 2009, CSFGL issued 11,769,194 i) MW-ZEZTAFHA/\R: CSFGLE
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.50 F IR 0.5078 7T 2 B 1% A A £ B 34T
per share to the Group for settling part of 11,769,194 R Z B4 - U
the consideration for acquiring the entire 3 [ 7 £ @ U B Shinhan-Golden
issued share capital of Shinhan-Golden Faith Faith International Development
International Development Limited (“Shinhan- Limited ([ Shinhan-Golden]) &
Golden”) and World East Investments Limited World East Investments Limited
(“World East”) and the sale loans from the (TWorld East]) 2 & E 2 17 &
Group (the “Disposal”). The 11,769,194 new RERBESEBEREAEBZE
ordinary shares represented approximately ReBHRETHESED - &%
20.36% of the issued share capital of CSFGL 11,769,194 % #1 & B R R 10 15
as enlarged by the issue of 11,769,194 new CSFGL#A # 1711,769,194R #i
ordinary shares and the fair value of which was BROEAR 2 BTIRA20.36% -
HK$2,118,000. As a result, the Group recorded mEAFEE2,118,00078 Tt ©
an excess of acquirer’s interest in fair value o AEESBWREAREE QR
of associates’ identifiable net assets over cost AERNFEEATFEZEZBHK
of acquisition of HK$16,286,000 which was B8 A AN 2 1 %816,286,00078 T »
recognised as income in the determination EREEREEEMLCSFGLR A
of the investors’ share of CSFGL and its MEBARARBE-ZZTAE+=A
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December S+ -BLEFEZEISERAR
2009. Ao
(i) On 2 July 2009, the Group subscribed for iy R=ZZBZTAFELtAZH AKEER
94,153,552 new ordinary shares in CSFGL BR-ZZEZFAFHNAZ=-+=A2
under the open offer announced on 23 April 2 A B9 8 &R 08 94,153,552 %
2009. The consideration for subscription CSFGL¥TR M - RBHEBER 2K
of the new ordinary shares amounted to 59,415,000/ T ©

HK$9,415,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) CSFGL (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 7 December 2009, CSFGL issued new
ordinary shares pursuant to a private
placement and the exercise of share options
which caused a dilution on the Group’s interest
in CSFGL from 20.36% to 15.66%. As a result,
the Group recorded a loss on deemed disposal
of an associate of HK$6,629,000. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group had
retained significant influence over CSFGL by
the representation of the Group on the board
of directors of CSFGL despite the interest held
by the Group is below 20% and the Group
had continuously accounted for CSFGL as its
associate for the year ended 31 December
2009.

At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in CSFGL, based on published
quoted price on the Stock Exchange, was
HK$33,366,000 and the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest was HK$27,465,000.

On 21 January 2010, Mr. Heung Wah Keung,
a then director of the Company, resigned as
an executive director of CSFGL. As a result,
CSFGL operates without regard to the views
of the Group. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company have considered that the Group
had lost its significant influence over CSFGL
since then and have reclassified the Group’s
interests in CSFGL as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. The Group
recorded a loss on losing significant influence
of an associate of HK$21,028,000 and shared
a loss from the results of an associate of
HK$543,000 (2009: a profit of HK$6,372,000) in
the consolidated income statement.

All the reclassified interests in CSFGL have
disposed and a loss was recognised in
consolidated income statement.

As a result of the conversion of the convertible
notes receivable from CSEL, CSEL has became
an associate of the Company and the Group
recognised an excess of acquirer’s interest in
fair value of associates’ identifiable net assets
over cost of acquisition of HK$686,214,000
which was recognised as income in the
determination of the investors’ share of CSEL
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2009.
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18. RBEE N T 2 (&)

Bt - (&)

(@) CSFGL (#)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

() CSEL

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB %I EER AT

R-ZZEZEAFE+=-HAtH CSFGL
BREBEAARERETHFEBEREM
BROHEBERRG BERAEE
FACSFGL 2z # %% F20.36% i# &
£15.66% c Bt AEBHEBER
&£ B2 D F S 86,629,000
B RABAEERBAEEE
BACSFGLESE R ARER ¥
CSFGLMRBEAREE L HRE
REBEFFEZLN20% 0 ~EH
REBEZ-_ZZTZhRFE+=A=+-—H
I EENEEE CSFGLARN AR

BEAT -

RZEZTAFE+=ZA=+—8"
AN EBMMACSFGLZ # % 2 A F
BEREBIMABRERTE) S
33,366,000 T MASEEERZ 2
BRE{E A 27,465,000 7T °

R=ZE-—ZTF—-—HA=+-H &K
AEEBCEETBOERLE LR
fECSFGLZ # T E S A It -
CSFGLEEESAEEEAME
E-Hlit ARAAEERALNEEH
BT kEHYCSFGLZ E R
Zh, WEBAEEARFELNER
HAENEBNCSFGL R E
PEBRAFEFABERZER
BE-AEEARGEREZRES
REBEQNTNERFEHZER
21,028,0008 T Kk FE(h B & N A %
EET1E 543,000 T(ZBEZAEF ¢
% F 6,372,000 7T) °

FEEH ¥ 2 CSFGLERE K

MRHERCSELEE% » CSELERB
AATBzBENT > MAKEECHE
RURESRBEEQTUERFERE
AFEZEDBHWREBRAR ZEEE
686,214,000t - HEEREBEE®R
EEEMCSELREMB A ARE
ZF_EERE+_A=1+—-HLE
EZRAEEABERA -

el
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB8 EIEEER AT

CSEL (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 10 December 2009, the Group disposed
of 320,000,000 ordinary shares in CSEL
to independent third parties at a price of
HK$0.20 per share. As the net asset value of
CSEL attributable to the 320,000,000 ordinary
shares in CSEL was HK$343,130,000 and the
consideration (after deducting transaction
costs) was HK$63,110,000, the Group recorded
a loss on partial disposal of an associate of
HK$280,020,000.

At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in CSEL, based on published
quoted price on the Stock Exchange, was
HK$124,440,000 and the carrying amount
of the Group’s interest in CSEL was
HK$614,443,000.

On 13 January 2010, CSEL issued 52,790,000
new ordinary shares upon exercise of share
options which caused a dilution on the Group’s
shareholding interest in CSEL from 29.61%
to 28.94%. As a result, the Group recorded a
loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$10,790,000. The directors of the Company
consider that the Group has retained significant
influence over CSEL.

On 11 February 2010, CSEL issued
540,000,000 new ordinary shares pursuant to
a private placement which caused a dilution
on the Group’s shareholding interest in CSEL
from 28.94% to 23.54%. As a result, the Group
recorded a loss on deemed disposal of an
associate of HK$95,343,000. The directors
of the Company consider that the Group has
retained significant influence over CSEL.

On 11 August 2010, CSEL allotted and issued
1,444,643,184 new ordinary shares pursuant
to the rights issue proposed on 8 July 2010.
The Group’s shareholding interest in CSEL was
diluted from 23.54% to 15.69% and the Group
ceased to have significant influence over
CSEL. Accordingly, the Group has accounted
for CSEL as available-for-sale financial assets,
instead of an associate. The fair value of the
Group’s interest in CSEL, based on published
quoted price on the Stock Exchange, was
HK$68,000,000. The Group recorded a loss
on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$431,482,000 and shared a loss from the
results of an associate of HK$8,828,000 (2009:
a profit of HK$16,116,000) in the consolidated
income statement.

el

18. RBEE N T 2 (&)

Kz - (48)
(o) CSEL (#

iy R=ZZEEAF+=-A+AH  x&E
BER020BT2ER  BBILE
= 75 1 £ 320,000,000 )8 CSEL &
# B - B /320,000,000 &8 CSEL
LiER < EEF{EAH343,130,000
B MREGIBRIZRAKE)
#63,110,00058 7T+ W A& &
BENHEEHE AT ZBE
280,020,000 & 7T °

iy RZZTFhLhF+=ZA=+—
B REBIMAKRESL &
SEENCSELzEHZ 2 A FES
124,440,000 T > M A& &£ B »
CSEL Z ## IR {8 A 614,443,000
BT °

(ivy W=Z2—ZFF—-—H+=H CSEL
(A 17 1 B8 AR #& m 3 17 52,790,000
BHEBERRAG BHRAEER
CSEL2 # % H29.61%# & =
28.94% o It - AEEBERIESH
EBE NT 2 B84 10,790,000
e ARFEERE  ~NEERE
HCSELZEAREEN -

vy R=-ZE—ZH-HA+—H CSEL
R 5 A A B & % 17 540,000,000 f&
HRH BHRAEBENRCSELZE
% F128.94% # 8 £23.54% °
b REBESSRELERE AT
2 518 95,343,000/8 7T - XA TE
ERB AEEBERBECSELZE
=23

(i R=ZE=2—-=ZFNA+—H ' CSEL
BRER-_Z-ZFELAN\BEEZ
IR B 3% % 2% 17 1,444,643,184 1%
HETBERRMD - REBMNCSELZ
T %5 F23.54% # 8 £15.69% -
BTBHCSELEEARFEH - R
bt NEB T CSELAETHE
EZeMEE(MIEBRELQT) °
ADABNCSELzEHZ 2 DX FE
(REBERBEXFFABESKTE)D
68,000,00058 T - REBREZEIK
HERBERELERE AT ZER
431,482,0008 TR FEL Bt E D B
¥/E55188,828,0000 8 T(ZZEE N
% 3%F16,116,00087T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REEE N B 2R ()
Notes: (Continued) et ()
(b) CSEL (Continued) (b) CSEL(#)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BFEAKEBHE AR ZHBEERBEZ WM
Group’s associates is as follows: T:
2010 2009
—s-%% —EEnE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total assets EEHAE - 3,784,503
Total liabilities EER%E - (1,289,730)
Net assets BEFE - 2,494,773
Group’s share of net assets of associates ~ AEBEELEE AR FEE - 641,908
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Total revenue Wi ER 479,087 567,652
Total (loss)/profit for the year REE(FB),IaREE (42,657) 190,494
Group’s share of (loss)/profit of AEBELEE A
associates (&8B),/5H (9,371) 22,488
Group’s share of other comprehensive REBELBEEATEM
expense of associates 2EAX (83) (99)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

19. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

19. FEWETE

The Group
rEH

2010 2009

—E-EF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

At 1 January m—A—H 31,853 —

Subscription of promissory note REAMNE - 25,952
Imputed interest income on ANEZHEREWRA

promissory note 3,520 5,901

Early repayment of promissory note 1EREBEAENE (35,373) -

At 31 December R+=—B=+—H - 31,853

On 8 April 2009, CSFGL issued a promissory
note in a principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
the Group for settling part of the consideration
for acquiring the entire issued share capital
of Shinhan-Golden and World East and the
sale loans from the Group. The promissory
note receivable is unsecured, interest-free and
maturing on 7 April 2014.

The Group measured the promissory note initially
at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.
The fair value of the promissory note as at the
date of its issue is HK$25,952,000 calculated at
an effective interest rate of 30.97% per annum in
year 2009.

On 26 May 2010, the promissory note was fully
repaid to the Group by CSFGL. A gain on early
repayment of promissory note receivable of
HK$64,627,000 was recognised.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

RZZEZNAFEWA/\H » CSFGLEARE
@ 2 1T AN £ %8 5 100,000,000 8 T 2 7%
2+ Bl {4 Y B8 Shinhan-Golden &
World East2 &2 #1TRAZEMKE
UREZSBERFAEBZER o BB
NEDEEH B8 TER=-ZFT—N
FHAEHEIHE -

AEEBNZRAIFERERREBERAE
STEBRYENER - AERANERER
TRHEZAFER25952,00087T > J)
B_ZRZNF2EBRNEEF30.97%
FE e

RZE—ZFRAF-+7xH CSFGL[G
AEEEBHEERANZ - CHEITIREE
ERBANE 2% 64,627,00078 T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B Z ==

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE

The convertible notes receivable contain two
components: debt and conversion option
components. The debt components are
accounted for as loans and receivables while the
conversion options components are accounted

for as derivative financial instruments.

5 & B 35 3R R B 6

—FEFZ =T HUFE

20. BT EE

FUAMHREEEEEMISDs BERR
BEEREND BEHBIDAKRSE

E - MERARREBZEERERLD T
ABRARTEEHIA -

Movements in the debt components of the FEW CSFGLZ IR ZEBEH D R
convertible notes receivable from CSFGL during FEZESFFHINOT :
the year were as follows:
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 3,670 -
Subscription of convertible notes RETBRREE - 1,659
Imputed interest income on ARBRRBEZHE
convertible notes FE WA 527 2,011
Early repayment of convertible REEEWTERRK
notes =B (4,197) —
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H - 3,670

On 8 April 2009, CSFGL issued the convertible
notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to the Group for settling part of
the consideration for acquiring the entire issued
share capital of Shinhan-Golden and World East

and the sale loans. The convertible notes are

unsecured, interest-free and maturing on 7 April

2019.

Annual Report 2010 —Z2—ZEEF |

R-ZEZENFWNANE » CSFGLEALE
[® 2% 17 /K £ 8 100,000,000 78 Jt = 7] #2
IR Z 5 L X {J W B Shinhan-Golden &
World East2#HE#&ITRAZHBSKE
URHEZ Eﬁ(ﬁ$’§2§$k o AR
ZEEAEERF - RERBER=-ZE—-HEF
mAtBEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE

21.

(Continueqd)

The convertible notes entitle the Group to
convert to ordinary shares of CSFGL at an
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.229 per
share (subject to further adjustment) during the
period from 8 April 2009 to 7 April 2019. Unless
previously redeemed, converted or cancelled, the
outstanding principal amount of the convertible
notes shall be redeemed on 7 April 2019 at par.

The debt components of the convertible notes
are measured at amortised cost and the
effective interest rate of the debt components
are 43.04% per annum. The conversion options
components are presented as conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivable in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

On 26 May 2010, the convertible notes were fully
repaid to the Group by CSFGL. A gain on early
repayment of convertible notes receivable of
HK$75,962,000 was recognised.

20.

R TR R (&)

TRREERFAEEEL R-ZZT
NWEMNBNBE=ZZE-NFNA LA
BREAELIBRESR0.229B T (A F
FAR)EHRIBBCSFGLZEER » KR
FEAMEREE - HBRRNFTH > MARED
ZUBRBREEASERR -_Z—NEFDT
At BIZRAEEER -

ARREECEBEDD DIRBHEK ARG
B2 MEBEHD 2ERMEE43.04%
RBBEED D WG ISR R E
WA EERNE 2 HIBRREBEZS -

R-ZZE-—ZFFHA=-+73H CSFGL
MAEEEHEEZTRREE -CF
RAEREZERRTEREE 2B &
75,962,00038 7T °

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21, AMHLELREE
ASSETS
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Listed equity securities, Hong Kong LtilRA#E% » Fi8
— Reclassification from interests — EF7ERBERTZ
in associates (note 18) Y= (M 18) 68,000 -
— Loss arising on change in fair — AVFEEBEE
value ZEE (14,280) -
53,720 —
Club debenture EES 172 172
53,892 172

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 31 March 2010, the Group
acquired 6,750,000 ordinary shares (the
“Sale Shares”) in Hantec Holdings Investment
Limited (“Hantec”) from Mr. Man Kong Yiu at
a consideration of HK$18,000,000 on 16 April
2010. The consideration was satisfied by issuing
26,420,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
credited as fully paid to Mr. Man.

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 31 March 2010,

(i) the Group has granted a call option to Mr.
Man to acquire the Sale Shares from the
Group for a consideration of HK$21,600,000
within one year from 16 April 2010, being
the date of completion of the acquisition;
and

(i) Mr. Man has irrevocably warranted and
guaranteed to the Group that the dividend
payouts to the Group in respect of the Sale
Shares for (i) the period commencing from
the date of completion of the acquisition to
30 June 2010 (the “1st Relevant Period”)
shall be no less than the amount equivalent
to HK$1,800,000 per annum in proportion to
the number of days during the 1st Relevant
Period (calculated based on 365 days per
annum); (ii) for the year ending 30 June 2011
shall be no less than HK$1,800,000 (the
“2nd Relevant Period”); and (iii) for the year
ending 30 June 2012 shall be no less than
HK$1,800,000 (the “3rd Relevant Period”).
If the dividend payouts to the Group in
respect of the Sale Shares for any of the 1st
Relevant Period, the 2nd Relevant Period
and/or the 3rd Relevant Period are less than
the amounts as stated above, Mr. Man shall
pay to the Group the shortfall on dollar-to-
dollar basis in cash.
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21. AHHESRHEE#)

RER-Z-—ZF=F=+—HFTLZ
ERUGEERSZ  A5EER_-_Z—Z=F
M B+ 75 B &K {E 18,000,000 7 JT 6 XX
M £ 55 4 Uk 88 6,750,000 R = = £ 1%
BEEERQAATZEZENZER(HE
B  RECHARQA [ EERT
26,420,000 B A BRPIMESBLR 2 AR A B3
BRI AT o

BEN-_Z2-SF=A=+—-H0iu1z

B EERHZ

(i

AEBECRAXAERERERE
AZZE-FEMA+ANBEK
BERAH) BT —FRAUARE
21,600,000 8 T @A EEUEHE
[ % 4

X LT R A E b 6] 4N 5 [ R 3%
RER BOBWEBZEXEBHZE=
Z-ZEFRA=ZTH(E—EBEH
BHRAEEBXZSEREEERD 2
BREREE —HBEHE 2 HE8ZLL
BI(RE—F365HFTE)E  #
RLOREE RS E 1,800,000 T
ZEE(VBE=ZE——% XA
EtELEFETEF-HBHE D@
AEEXNEREEERD ZRER
T4 1,800,0008 7T ; K (i) &E
ZE-—EXRNA=THLEFE(E
ZHBRBE RSB SEEEH
ERMZBREHT2HK1,800,000
BT o MR EE —HEHE - %
—HEEERE=HEHEE
TEEBXHERHEERNZKRED
REMSRE BINEEBREEE
EUBRSOAEERFELE -
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21, fHHEESRMEE &)

138

ASSETS (Continued)

On 17 May 2010, Hantec notified the Group that
the registration of the transfer of the Sale Shares
had been declined pursuant to the articles of
association of Hantec. On 20 May 2010, a trust
deed was executed by Mr. Man as trustee in
favour of the Group as beneficiary, pursuant to
which Mr. Man had agreed to act as nominee for
the Group in respect of the Sale Shares and to
hold the Sale Shares on trust for the Group. On
the same date, Mr. Man gave an undertaking in
favour of the Group that he should procure the
registration of transfer of the Sale Shares within
six months from the date of the undertaking
and, if he failed to procure the registration within
the prescribed time, to exercise the call option
to acquire the Sale Shares from the Group at
HK$21,600,000. As Mr. Man failed to procure
the registration of the transfer of the Sale Shares
within the prescribed time, Mr. Man exercised the
call option to acquire the Sale Shares from the
Group at HK$21,600,000. Taking into account the
fair values of the consideration paid and the call
option granted, a gain on disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets of HK$7,579,000 was
recognised.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

RZZE-—ZFFRAT+LH TEHEX
58 HEROZBFERLERETER
EBERMAUEER R=-ZT—ZTFH
B-+H XEEMUEAZTEA)IFL—
NERAREEBZEERE Bt
XELEREBEHEAEBZHERAAR
EA UERAFARXRETEERFEHER
e @B - 3% T E A& EE H &
o RTEBREEHEERONARLB R
FAARBRARETBEER  MMHESEE
REEREREEHZEREER » Al1T
2 08 B LLI% 21,600,000 8 T B AR &
BB ER D o BRI EERERIE
ERNEANREHERDETRFER
W A TER B LIIZ 21,600,000
BLTOAEERBHERD - KR
TRARERBRERBEHEZLATE K
SERRLETHEESREEZRS
7,579,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, E5EWRIE
The Group
REE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days Z230H 5,859 6,022
31-60 days 31£60H - —
61-90 days 61Z90H - —
Over 90 days 90 H M E 396 396
6,255 6,418
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BHRARBEEE (396) (396)
5,859 6,022

Notes: Kzt

(@) The following is an aged analysis of the trade

(@) RE{WHK - BEZRWIENREERSE

receivables net of impairment loss at the end of the BZERBROWWT :
reporting period:
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-¥F C—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days Z230H 5,859 6,022

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to
its customers.

(b) At 31 December 2010, the Company had no trade
receivables past due but not impaired (2009: Nil).
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

AABEBRRFEBETHEFTH90
R2iEEH -

(b) R=ZEB-ZHFE+ZA=+-—8 xEEL
BEBHBERREEZERRE(ZS
TAE B AEBUERZEE SR
BEMEKRS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22,

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Aging of impaired trade receivables is as follows:

B2 BWRIE(#)

BiaE - (&)
(c) CEREEZEWRRZRENT :

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-Z2F CZEEZhF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Over 90 days 9Q0H MU E

396 396

The directors of the Company consider
the carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate to their fair values.

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23.
RECEIVABLES

RAARESRAEZRRFIRZREE
HERD

FEME -

BE  AARERAEBERIRER

The Group The Company
rEH PN

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F ZEZTNF ZET-BF ZITNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FET
Deposits ZE 879 842 - -
Prepayments A EE 360 60 - -
Other receivables HAb W IE 1,217 113 192 101
2,456 1,015 192 101

The directors of the Company consider the
carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments
and other receivables approximate to their fair
values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

24. LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE

24, MHEERTER

The Group and the Company

AEERAAQT
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January Mn—HA—H 155,536 -
Loan to an associate B =NE] - 375,536
Repayment of loan EEEX (155,536) (220,000)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H - 155,536

On 8 April 2009 (being the date of completion
of the Disposal), L BEREF Xt EER 2 A
(“Shanghai Shengping”) was indebted to the
Group in the sum of HK$375,536,000. Pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement of the
Disposal, the loan made to Shanghai Shengping
by the Group was not settled immediately upon
completion and CSFGL has provided a guarantee
to the Group for a term of maximum of three
financial years ending 31 December 2011 to
secure the repayment. If any part of the loan has
not been settled on the day falling on the fifth
anniversary of the date of completion, CSFGL will
issue a convertible note to settle the outstanding
balance of the loan.

The loan to Shanghai Shengping is secured by a
corporate guarantee given by CSFGL, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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R-ZZBEZAFHOANB(BNHESERK
BHE) EBRFREBRLTTLE
HY¥ ) HERAKREEAEI75,536,000 %
ToRBEEHEZEERHZ  A&EEBL
BREPEHCERIEN T KRS
€ MCSFGLEMAKEERMER  F
HEZEEBEZE-ZE——F+=-A=+—
BLE=EMERFE  ERAERER
FMERBHEBER TR AHRTEE
FEHEE BICSFGLERITHHRRE
B LUEEBERER -

BEBEFRUCSFGLEEMH ZIERFIEMA -
DR EREBEENRD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 25, EWEEE N TRIE
Amount due from an associate disclosed BB N TEGIZE 161B & 2 FEUREEZ A 7
pursuant to section 161B of the Companies FRIEWT :

Ordinance are as follows:

Maximum
amount
outstanding

during The Group
the year rEE
FRREEZ 2010 2009
BEeTH —E-FF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FEBT
CSEL 5,103 - 5,103
Maximum
amount

outstanding

during The Company
the year RKAF
FRREEZ 2010 2009
Betk —E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
CSEL 3,973 - 3,973
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, EWEE AT REAZRIER RERY
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. EETEERD -
During the year, the amount due from an FR COAKEEEZRZEERREE A
associate had been fully repaid to the Group. BIE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. RAFEFABBRRZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investments held-for-trading: BEBEE2RE :
Listed equity securities EHRATE S
— Hong Kong, at fair value — &% BAVE 7,650 —
Listed derivatives FHETETIA
— Hong Kong, at fair value — 58 BoVE 1,768 —
9,418 -
During the year, 136,000,000 warrants were FR > AEERBECSELER -_ZE—F
issued to the Group pursuant to the bonus issue EXANBESEHEEIREERMOER—
of warrants by CSEL to its shareholders on the NRABERZEEQHERRBETALAAR
basis of one warrant for every five existing shares Ji% #E 55 T % 2% 17 136,000,000 17 52 % #
held on 8 June 2010. & o
During the year, a gain arising on change in fair FR CHEIARLPFEFTABERRZ
value of financial assets at fair value through TREEZATEEHELE 2R E
profit or loss amounted HK$4,918,000 was 4,918,0007/8 JC °
recognised.

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZTFF 3} ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{85 EEIZEBR QA 143




144
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e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z ==

27.

28.

LOAN TO A RELATED COMPANY

On 29 April 2009, the Company made a loan
of HK$200,000,000 to CSEL pursuant to the
conditional loan agreement dated 11 March
2009. The Company may at any time before the
maturity date demand a repayment of the whole
or part of the loan by serving 20 business days
prior written notice to CSEL. The loan made to
CSEL was approved by the shareholders, other
than Mr.
Yin, Tiffany and their associates, on 22 April
2009. On 21 September 2009,
utilised to subscribe the convertible notes of
HK$200,000,000 issued by CSEL pursuant to the
conditional subscription agreement dated 23 July
2009 (note 29).

Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming

the loan was

The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at
prime rate as quoted by The Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited per annum

and maturing on 28 April 2012.

CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE

Conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivable represent the conversion options
components of the convertible notes receivable
from CSFGL, which are measured at fair value
using a binomial option pricing model, at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting
period.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

27.

28.

—FFE+ A=+ —HILFE

BERE QR EMR

RZZEZAFNAZ+NE  XAFR
BR-ZZNF=ZA+—HFTLZERK
£ & ¥ @ CSEL{E 4 200,000,000 % 7T
ZE o ANT T AZHE B AT 6 [
ZEBMOCSELZE20EX£H2E %
EHBHEREEEZHIBIER -
BCSELEHZERR -_ZEZNFMNA
“tHERERLE RPERZIR
WECHBBALTUNM BRI AE - R
EENFENRA=+— El':zﬁiéi =]
AURBCSELREEHRA-ZTTLE
tAZ+=ZH2Z2EBGHR ﬂ%Tﬁ)’JnﬁﬁﬁZ
200,000,000 /& JT AT 2 B2 =95 (MIEE 29) ©

ZEERREERR &E%LSIEE%E
TERAAFMBzZREZFANERIE
YR=ZZF-——FHA=+NHEH -

BRAMEERREAS 2R REER

RNEREBWARRES 2 ZIRRERET

JECSFGLEB 2 R BERRE » I N
N EIAR /P REA R BEE

AP E R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

28. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED 28. ENARREBRS 2R IRBRER
IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE (&
(Continued)
Movements in the conversion options component FEROBEBREERS 2 LIRREZELD
of the convertible notes receivable during the RERNZEBWMT :

year were as follows:

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1 January Mn—HA—H 18,316 -
Subscription of convertible notes RBUIBRKREE
— conversion options component — RRRERID - 82,858
Gain/(loss) arising on change in HREERERy 2 AT E
fair value of conversion options BEIEE WG
component (E518) 1,525 (64,542)
Early repayment of convertible notes 122 EEAIRREE (19,841) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H - 18,316
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28. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED 28. EWAREEAS 2 A BRER

146

IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE (&)

(Continued)

Binomial option pricing model is used for

valuation for conversion options components. The

inputs into the model as at 8 April 2009 (being
the date of subscription), 31 December 2009 and

—IEAHEEEEN TG R
BREMD BTRREBER-ZFZN
FMANBRBEH) - ZFFH
F+ZA=Z=+-HRZZ2-Z5HA

26 May 2010 (being the date of repayment) are “+AB(ANERBH) 2B ASEH
as follows: mT
8 April 2009 26 May 2010
(the date of (the date of
subscription) 31 December 2009 repayment)
—®ThE —BBhE —s-2%
mANAR +=—A=+-—H BA=+KH
(REEH) (B BH)
Stock price HK$0.545 HK$0.315 HK$0.250
RO ER 0.545% 7T 0.315% 7T 0.250%& 7T

Conversion price

HK$0.5 per share

HK$0.229 per share

HK$0.848 per share

RBE BRo5%8T B 0.229% T HhR0.848 8T
Volatility 119.64% 123.18% 121.64%
A

Dividend yield Zero Zero Zero
BE R = = =
Option life 10 years 9.27 years 8.87 years
HAREF A 105 9.27%F 8.87 &
Risk free rate 2.101% 2.512% 2.307%

425 L B R
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTE DESIGNATED AS

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

On 21 September 2009, the Group subscribed
for the convertible note in a principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 from CSEL pursuant to the
conditional subscription agreement dated 23 July
2009. The subscription price of the convertible
note was satisfied by setting off the loan of
HK$200,000,000 made by the Company to CSEL
on 29 April 2009 (note 27). The convertible
note entitles the Group to convert to ordinary
shares in CSEL at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.20 per share (subject to adjustment).
The convertible note was unsecured, interest
bearing at prime rate as quoted by The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
per annum and maturing on 20 September 2012.
The subscription of the convertible note was
approved by the shareholders, other than Mr.
Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
and their respective associates, on 14 September
2009.

The convertible note was designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the
convertible note met the criteria for the category
of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group converted the entire convertible note into
1,000,000,000 shares in CSEL at a conversion
price of HK$0.20 per share. As a result, the
Group recognised a gain arising on change
in fair value in respect of convertible note of
HK$55,244,000, which represented the difference
between the fair value of the convertible note
upon conversion of HK$255,244,000 and the
carrying amount of the convertible note of
HK$200,000,000.
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29. EERBELAFEFARBRZATE

RiE

R-ZZEZEAFHRA=-+T—H AEER
BR-ZEZAFtAZ+=HFT L2
BERHERBHERBCSELEITASE
200,000,000/ 8 T 2 AT 2 IR 15 - EHﬁ
REECRBEEBKHERQATNRZ
gﬁﬁmﬁ_wLnElrcﬂCSEu’ﬁmﬁ,ﬂ
200,000,000 & 7t 3 1 (Mt 5£27) AT #
REBBRTFAEERED  AJROTHE
EER020B T (A THE)EREER
SHELEBABCSELERARK - JRRERE
AEIEE - REBLESELRTAERA
A REEFANEHE IR_-F
—ZFABZ+THEH RETRRE
BR-_ZEZNFALATHUAERERL
d BHRERZIEBESTEZHEAL
BUSNZ BRERHEAE ©

S EVEESEEIN S P T
X2 EMAEZLL  HAREE TR
BREETAEATFEIARERZS
BAE -

BE-_ZENF+-A=+—HLHEF
B AEBEZRBBRESRKRO.20ETEA
BEREE2HH 1% %1,000,000,000 k%
CSELK# - At » XEBEBZFIBRKRE
& N B & B U35 55,244,000 78 Jo (A]
AR E 5 D ¥ {H 255,244,000 7% T £
HBREI{E 200,000,0008 T2 £%8) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

29.

30.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE DESIGNATED AS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (Continued)

The fair value of the convertible note as at 21
September 2009 (being the date of subscription)
was measured using a binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

21 September 2009
(the date of subscription)
Stock price HK$0.171

Conversion price HK$0.2 per share

Volatility 95.63%
Dividend yield 11.06%
Option life 3 years
Risk free rate 0.941%

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting periods as shown in the consolidated
cash flows statement can be reconciled to the
related items in the consolidated statement of

financial position as follows:

29.

30.

BEERBEAFEFABRBERZ AR
RERE &)

THRREER-"ZFETAFAA=-T—H
(MRBEB) 22 FELEAZEXY
BEBRAZAFENE - FTAKRKE
AZERWMT :

—2BAFAA=+—R

(REEH)
AR E 1% 0.17138 T
@ BRO.2ET
g 95.63%
R 2 W am R 11.06%
HA #E F 55 34
1 3 B = 0.941%
RERAEEEY

RERERERFTTIRBEEHRZRE
RESESEYTRESUBERRARZEA
BAEBEHROT

The Group The Company
rEE RAF

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F5 —EThE ZE-ZF CZETNE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEx FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 989,602 275,802 15,078 40,027
United States Dollars E 23 - - -
989,625 275,802 15,078 40,027

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B

Movements in the share capital of the Company BRBFRZBAESENOT :
during the year are as follows:

Number of shares Share capital
R EE % 7
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Bf CZ—EZEThF —T-TF "—IZETNF
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
F® T FET FiET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BREE0.01ET
each (2009: HK$0.01 each) (ZBZNEF:
AR E{E0.0187T)
ZERR
Authorised: ZEE
At 1 January and W—A—HBRt+=A
31 December =+-—H 2,000,000 2,000,000 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ER7TRHE -
At 1 January R—B—H 188,128 195,187 1,881 1,952
Top-up subscription of new UAERHAARE
shares (note a) HRG(Hita) - 39,000 - 390
Placing of new shares (note b) EE&HRH (HFb) - 200,000 - 2,000
Placing of new shares (note c) EEHKRH (Afitc) - 300,000 - 3,000
Open offer of new shares NHABEHRG
(note d) (Hzd) - 367,003 - 3,671
Capital reorganisation NEF |
— share consolidation — R#uE6
(note e(i) (Btate() - (991,152) - -
— capital reduction — BRAER
(note e(ii) (B1:# eii) - - - (9,912)
Top-up subscription of new LAE#FHHARE
shares (note f) MR (WS - 22,000 - 220
Issuance of new shares (note g) Z{THRA (#:Fg) - 56,000 - 560
Issuance of new shares (note h) BTG (Kfth) 26,420 - 264 —
Exercise of share options TEBRE
(notes i, j and k) (B&Ei > jR k) 15,060 - 151 -
Placing of new shares (note I)  E&HRG (K:Z1) 45,920 - 459 —
Rights issue of new shares HRBITHRG
(note m) (HtzEm) 826,584 - 8,266 —
At 31 December W+=RA=+-H 1,102,112 188,128 11,021 1,881
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB8 EIEEER AT

On 9 January 2009, 39,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.102 per share by way of top-up subscription
of new shares under general mandate. The net
proceeds of HK$3,820,000 were intended to be used
for reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.

On 11 February 2009, 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$0.102 per share by way of placing
of new shares under specific mandate. The net
proceeds of HK$19,870,000 were intended to be
used for reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.

On 2 March 2009, 300,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.091 per share by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate. The net proceeds
of HK$26,850,000 were intended to be used for
reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.

On 30 March 2009, 367,093,498 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a
subscription price of HK$0.10 per share by way of
open offer to qualifying shareholders on the basis
of one new ordinary share for every two existing
ordinary shares held on 6 March 2009. The net
proceeds of HK$34,339,000 were intended to be
used for financing possible diversified investments
and general working capital of the Group.

On 22 April 2009, the shareholders approved the
following changes to the capital of the Company:

(i) share consolidation: that every ten issued and
existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one issued ordinary share
of HK$0.10 in the issued share capital of the
Company; and

(i)  capital reduction — that (i) the total number
of the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
issued share capital of the Company following
the share consolidation be rounded down to
a whole a number by cancelling the fractional
share arising from the share consolidation;
(ii) the nominal value of each of the issued
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 be reduced to
HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.09 on each issued ordinary
share of HK$0.10; and (iii) the amount of credit
arising from capital reduction be credited
to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

The capital reorganisation became effective on
23 April 2009.

el

31. R&(#)

HiaE -

(@ RZZEZTNRE-—ANB A2FIARE—R
BREEBLAERFTRAB2AN  EER
0.102 78 JT 2 {8 % B 3% & %47 39,000,000
BRERMEECIBITZHTER - FIER
T8 7F 563,820,000 8 T AE RO A EH
ZIRITIBE -

b) RZZFETEAF-_A+-—8 > KXQFE
BREBIEERET RO ZAX
RERKRINEB T ZEBRE B K BT
200,000,000 R SR EEO0.01 BT 2
B - FTS A ¥ 5 19,870,00078 Jt #t
AERDAEEZRITEE -

(c) R-ZZEZEARE=ZAZB  AQAEB
BEBIREEBEETRMO2A RN
RER0.091B T 2 B4 & &K %1

3 -

300,000,000 R B REE0.01 BT ZHE
BIR - P15 X IE ¥ 58 26,850,000 7 T B
RERLAEBZRTEE -

(d RZBEBAF=ZA=1+H8  A2FEBU
R-ZENEFE=ZANBELERREEL
ERERX-RyZERCEEDEERR
RAMBERDZAR  BER0.10EBT
2 BB % & % 17367,093,498 RERE
BBz EER FIEREFE
34,339,00078 T i F/E BRI ANEE 2 T A
ZRERERAEBZ -—REEES -

() REEFNFNA=-+=H RRHEH
RABRAELHAT 28

() KOEH: BE+TRAQATSHT
BATESREEO.01 BT 2ERIT
RERGBEHBE—REAQTRAEH
HEOI0ETZERTZER &

(i) BRAEDE — () EBFEROEHE
ECERBRG BROAHELRR
AERTRAFZEHROBAET
FAEERY . (VEBEHARRAGTH
BREBITEHRM0.09B T #
EREE0I0OBTZERITAMRK
HEEE R ZE0.018 T &)
BAEHEE 2ERSERALRD
FIZERBRIR -

BABAR-ZEZTARFEFNA=-T=
AN -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®

o

On 10 September 2009, 22,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$0.42 per share by way of top-up
subscription of new shares under general mandate.
The net proceeds of HK$9,030,000 were intended to
be used for general working capital of the Group.

On 29 December 2009, 56,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
to Thought Diamond International Limited at a
price of HK$0.50 per share. The net proceeds
of HK$27,700,000 were intended to be used for
possible diversified investments of the Group.

On 16 April 2010, the Company allotted and issued
26,420,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
credited as fully paid to Mr. Man Kong Yiu for
settling the consideration of HK$18,000,000 for
acquiring 6,750,000 shares in Hantec Holdings
Investment Limited.

On 29 April 2010, the Company allotted and issued
5,680,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at a price of HK$0.64 per share and 5,830,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.60 per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted to the directors and the Group’s
employees and consultants.

On 5 May 2010, the Company allotted and issued
990,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
a price of HK$0.60 per share and 1,600,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.64 per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted to the employees and consultants of
the Group.

On 10 June 2010, the Company allotted and issued
960,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted to
an employee of the Group. The exercise price was
HK$0.66 per share.

On 23 July 2010, 45,920,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.55 per share by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds of
HK$24,900,000 were intended to be used for general
working of the Group.
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Bt - (&)

(®

(h)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB %I EER AT

R=ZZEZAFAA+H BRE-—REE
DEABERFRE2ARNEER042/8B T
2 18 ¥ it 3% & 3 17 22,000,000 ;R = IR M
BB HEER - FIEREFHE
9,030,000/ B T FAEAEBE 2 —REE
B% o

RZZEZAFE+=A=+H  Thought
Diamond International Limitedi&
8 R0.5078 T = 1B 1% & B 3 & 317
56,000,000 3 E R EE0.01 B T 2 ¥ &
B o A5 FXIE F 58 27,700,000 8 T #E
FAEAEB TS TILRE -

R-Z—ZFWA+RA > AATEE
$H A FiEE | 2217 26,420,000 R ERE
EO0.01 BT ARIERRZZHZTER U
FATULEE 6,750,000 R EEFERIRE
BRA B KM 21K1E 18,000,000 8 7T °

RZZB-ZFTFMA=+HEB  XRFRR
FEE AEEEEREEZBERERT
EMRTEESR0.64BTEE R EIT
5,680,000 RERMEBE0.01 BT 2HEB
B UARIZRTEESRR0.60B Tl 2K &
175,830,000 R E R EE0.01 Bt 2
B o

RZZ2-ZFERAAR ARARAARTA
SEEERER zBREBTREMRTRE
ES R 0.64 8 T E 2 & 847 1,600,000 fiz
BREE0.ONBRLZHEER - URIEIT
fE{E S % 0.60 8 JT A 3 & 2417 990,000 R
BREME0.IBRLZHEER -

RZE-—ZTFXRA+AH > XARAERFEK
EEESCERERTHEMO 2 RET
960,000 X S M E BB T2 HE &
B TEERER0.66 BT ©

RZE—ZFLtAZ+=0 " RE—KRR
EEBRENRH 2T RNIEER0.558T
2 18 ¥ B 3 2 3817 45,920,000 R 2 IR |
BOOI BT ZHEER - IBREBEFHE
24,900,000 8 T AEREE 2 — R &S
BE o
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31. RA&(#&)
Notes: (Continued) st (&)
(m) On 29 September 2010, 826,584,147 new ordinary (m) R=ZZE-—ZFAA=-+HhAB  AAFEB
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at DRA-ZZ—ZFNA=ZHAEFE—REE
a subscription price of HK$0.04 per share by way of ETERER-RFAZTERIEENESER
rights issue to qualifying shareholders on the basis RRBERND2FN > EEBR0.04BTZ
of three new ordinary shares for every one existing B Em R K 17826,584,147TRBRE
ordinary share held on 3 September 2010. The net BOOIBTZHEBR - IESREFHE
proceeds of HK$325,330,000 were intended to be 325,330,000 B tRB AR FEEATAZ
used for funding a loan facility to be granted to a ERRE -

joint venture company.

32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. EsrERAREMENRIE
The Group The Company
rEE ¥/ |
2010 2009 2010 2009

—B-%F ZTINF ZT-BF -TTNF
HK’000 ~ HK'000  HK'000  HK’000
THET THET THET TET

Accruals EstEHR 7,272 6,414 3,659 3,042
Other payables Hfth B S A1 3,600 3,786 - -

10,872 10,200 3,659 3,042
The directors of the Company consider the ARBEERAETEBRAREMENR
carrying amounts of accruals and other payables B2 RAEEEQNFEES

approximate to their fair values.
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On 29 August 2008, the Company issued two
convertible notes with a principal amount of
HK$72,000,000 each to Well Will Investment
Limited (“Well Will”) for settling part of the
consideration for acquiring Rich Daily. Each of
the convertible notes bears interest at a rate of
5% per annum and carries a right to convert the
principal amount into shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$16.00 per share (subject
to further adjustment) during the period from 29
August 2008 to 28 August 2018. The Company
may at any time before the maturity date redeem
the convertible notes at par. Any amount of the
convertible notes which remains outstanding on
the maturity date will be redeemed at their then
outstanding principal amount, inclusive of interest
as accrued thereon.

On 18 July 2009, a convertible note with
a principal amount of HK$72,000,000 was
cancelled for settling the adjustment to the
consideration for acquiring the entire issued
share capital of Rich Daily. A loss on cancellation
of convertible notes payable of HK$18,247,000
was recognised.

On 27 July 2010, the Group had early redeemed
the other convertible notes with a principal
amount of HK$72,000,000. The fair value of the
liability component of convertible notes was
determined by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers, and
the discount rate 9.707% was used. A loss on
early redemption of convertible notes payable of
HK$1,062,000 was recognised.
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33. ENAERRRERE

RZZEZENFENAZ+AB  AAFH
Well Will Investment Limited ([Well
Will ) 2T 0 AN € 58 & % 72,000,000
BT ZAUBREE > WEEWERICh
Daily 2 E KB - IR EBRBIRF
FMESEFE  WHTERTIRLHE
HBESR16.00/8 T (A FHRE)Z K
SHEABRARATRAFEREEO.O1
BITZBRM - NRATAREREE AR Z
EAEZEOEBER TREERE - £/
REBAEARBER A RBREESER
REERHARBER2ASERERLD 81
HEMFE -

RZBZFEAFLtA+T=ZH X&HEA
72,000,000 8T 2 AR IR EEC F ks -
LUEE W Rich Daily 228 BT R A
ZREAESE MIHEMATRRE
18,247,000 8 T2 FUFER -

R-ZZ2-ZFFtA=-+tH £EECZ
REEB A £ % 572,000,000 T 2
Hi R EE - IR EBEEEH D
ZAFEDIHBLEEGEMTHE
FEERLAANEE MAZIEEXA
9.707% - EERIE R BRI T RREE 2
%738 1,062,00038 7T ©
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE 33. ERREE (&)
(Continued)
The convertible notes contain two components: THREREEEERTD  BEERKRES
liability and equity components. The equity Do RETDARE M IEIRKRH 36
component is presented in equity heading EIRREERE I G225 - BES
“convertible notes reserve” in note 36 to the DRZEBRFEREBFERZEITS5% °

consolidated financial statements. The effective
interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 9.75% per annum.

Movements in the liability component during the BEBITRERNZEHANOT :
year were as follows:

The Group and the Company

AEERAXAAT
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEhEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 54,563 105,803
Imputed interest expense for the year ANEE 2 (HER BB X 3,041 8,051
Interest expense paid and payable 2T REMFEMX (2,041) (5,538)
Cancellation of a convertible note of 5 72,000,000& T2
HK$72,000,000 AR EE — (568,753)
Early redemption of a convertible 122 M 72,000,000/8 2
note of HK$72,000,000 TR EE (55,563) —
At 31 December R+=B=+—H - 54,563
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. EEBIE
The followings are the major deferred tax UTARATIZECRIAELEHEEEREE
liabilities and assets recognised and movements REBEZE :
thereon:
The Group AEE

Accelerated Estimated  Convertible

tax tax notes Intangible
depreciation losses payable assets Total
MERERE MAHBER ENATERE BREE @it

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FiEr FiEr FiEr FET FiEr

At 1 January 2009 RZBENE
-R-H 254 (254) 6,855 54,823 61,678
Released on cancellation of convertible ~ FEEMTRRE
notes payable BRER - - (3,428) - (3,428)
Released on impairment loss recognised ~ HEF EERIHE
in respect of intangible assets BERRR - - - (14,078) (14,078)
Credit to consolidated income statement 3t ALRAWER - - (415) - (415)

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January RZEENE+ZR

2010 =t+-BR=%
-EF-F-H 254 (254) 3,012 40,745 43,757
Released on early redemption of REEOEMTH
convertible notes payable REER#R - - (3,427) - (3,427)
Released on impairment loss recognised ~ HEFEERIHE
in respect of intangible assets BERER - - - (583) (583)
Credit to consolidated income statement T AGZAWEE - - 415 - 415
At 31 December 2010 i 3:3
t=A=1-H 254 (254) - 40,162 40,162
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 34. EEEBIIE (&)
The Company ¥/
Convertible
notes
R EE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2009 RZEBEENEFE—H—H 6,855
Release on cancellation of convertible note 84 72,000,000 % T 2 FE{S AT AR
payable of HK$72,000,000 ZIERFRRRR (3,428)
Credited to income statement AR T (415)
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZBENF+ZA=+T—-HK
—E-FF-H—-H 3,012
Release on early redemption of convertible IR EEEE 72,000,000 8 7T 2 FE A
note payable of HK$72,000,000 AR RIERRR (3,427)
Credited to income statement FFAlER 415
At 31 December 2010 R=-TB-ZF+=HA=+—H -
The Group EN L
At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused R-ZZ-ZF+ZA=1+—-8  X&
estimated tax losses of HK$78,717,000 (2009: B A #%78,717,0008 T(ZZFTZTh F :
HK$63,179,000) available for offsetting against 63,179,000 7T ) 2 R By i & 5T B 55 /&S
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset BA K AR ERBER © 254,000
of HK$254,000 (2009: HK$254,000) has been BIT(ZZZNF 254,000 T) 2 E
recognised. No deferred tax asset has been EREEECERER - ARKREEA
recognised in respect of the remaining balance of ®2mF - IR EREE 78,463,00078
HK$78,463,000 (2009: HK$62,925,000) due to the T(ZBENF 162,925,000 7T) R
unpredictability of future profit streams. ELERIBEERE °
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

35. NI B LRz e

The Company

b /N
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost I ETIRD  BRA 83,553 83,553
Impairment losses recognised ERERBEEE (83,553) (83,553)
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK Bt B A B FRIB 1,685,316 1,195,287
Impairment losses recognised ERRBEEE (975,553) (980,196)
709,763 215,091

The carrying amounts of the interests in
subsidiaries are reduced to their recoverable
amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to
be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
amounts due from subsidiaries at 31 December
2010 and 2009 approximate to their fair values.
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RMBAR 2R RHEEAREH
TREEE FEIREEEIZZERE
HEREWBLARELE ZMEFTRREAES

125 B s e
/ﬁiﬁﬁi°

AR 2 R RUR B IR R % B R
BEBRE  ARAEERE  R=F
~BER=FBFAFT=AS+-A
U B A ARE 2 REERE AT E
EE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % E& 1% & B R A7)

157




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBEREME
For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B ARz ()

AATRzMBRRAR=-F
=t—BZHEBHIWT :

—25+=4

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2010 are set out as follows:

Particulars
Country/ of issued
place of share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital Principal activities
af 8 B 32 BRITRE
Loy PNCIEE FEYS: 1 EMEARFE TEXB
Best Season Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Dormant
RBRUHES of US$1 each gme
100 REREE1ET
ZEBR

Bluelagoon Investment
Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
RBRUEE US$1
TREE1EZT2EBR

Investment holding, sales
of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights in the PRC

REZR - HESRERE
RAEBTEY
BREFRTE

Dragon Leader Limited British Virgin Islands

RERUHS

1 ordinary share of
US$1
TREE1ZT2EBR

Investment holding

REZRK

Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands

KBRUHES

160,000,100 ordinary  Holding of film rights
shares of HK$1 BFEEFRITRE
each
160,000,100 REBRH
E1BTZEBR
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
RBEUEE US$1
TREE1ZT2EBR

Investment holding

REZR

Max Winner Investments
Limited
IERERRAT

Ocean Shores Licensing
Limited

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
REBELHES

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

1 ordinary share of
HK$1

TREE1BTZEBR

10,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

10,000 R EREE
1ETZEBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

35. RIfE QR 2 (&)

Particulars
Country/ of issued
place of share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital Principal activities
At ff B 3L BRITRE
(o PR Bx it AMERFE TEXR
Rich Joy Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Dormant
ERREBRAT BB HK$1 each gmex
2REREE1EBTZ
EBER

Riche Advertising Limited

Riche (BVI) Limited

Riche Distribution Limited
EXRTERLT

Riche Multi-Media Limited
EXZEBERAT

Riche Pictures Limited

EXFERRLT

Riche Video Limited
EXFEFERLT
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British Virgin Islands
EBRLEE

British Virgin Islands
EBELEE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
58

British Virgin Islands

RBELHS

Hong Kong
0

1 ordinary share of
US$1

1TREE1ET2EBR

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,000 REREE1ET

ZEBR

1,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

1,000,000 R B R EE
1BT2EBR

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2RBREE1EBTZ
EBR

1 ordinary share of
US$1

1TREE1ETZEBR

10 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each*

10RBREE 1008 T
ZEBR

20,000 R B R EE 100
B2 ERERIEL
B D *

Sales of financial assets

HETREE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEZER

Sub-licensing of film rights
in Hong Kong and sales
of financial assets

REBEREZRITER
HESHERE

Distribution of films and
other video features in
the PRC

RABERTEERAMS
RAseE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEZER

Distribution of video
products in Hong Kong

REBBOIIRER
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. RMIB ARz (&)
Particulars
Country/ of issued
place of share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital Principal activities
At ff B 3L BRITRE
(o PR Bx it EMELRFE TEXR
Rich Daily Group Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Provision of management
KEBELHES of US$1 each services
100 REREEI1ET RHEEERYK
ZEBR
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Travel business
BEERAT 5 shares of HK$1 g
each

1,000,000 R E R EE
1BTZEEBR

Simple View Investment Limited British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of Investment holding
RBELEE US$1 REZR
1TREE1EZETZEBR
* The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held * REBRZREERNVERILEREN S =
by the Group, carry practically no rights to dividends BE - BEREMEXZEZERATDVREKX
nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at ErBE HERSEAEREELREZ
any general meeting of Riche Video Limited nor to R EERRRTAZFEMDIK

participate in any distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche RQFEEFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly R IBEEMKBARHIHRARAM[
held by the Company. BE8 -

All of the subsidiaries are wholly owned by the EMBARYBAALARZERE
Company, except Best Season Holdings Corp. Best Season Holdings Corp. HA%KE
which is 75% owned by the Group. HET75% °

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities EMEBARR2HMEARN 2 M AREM
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or REYEE AN AER 2EBRES

at any time during the reporting period.
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36. RESERVES 36. f#f&

The Company ¥ /N

Share-based  Convertible

Share  Contributed payment notes Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
HRBFER R
RiriaE B4EH X SERE i ER @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FET FET FiEx FET

(note)
()
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-B-H - 651,375 32,050 34,692 (503,134) 214,983
Capital reorganisation ~ RAEA
(note 31) (Wit 31)
— capital reduction — BB - 9,912 - - - 9,912
— setoff accumulated  — REHREDH
losses against HETEE
contributed
surplus - (9,912) - - 9,912 -
Issuance of new shares  ETHRH 114,380 - - - - 114,380
Cancellation of THEFTAR
convertible notes 25
payable - - - (17,346) - (17,346)
Share-based payment  MRHAFRZA
expenses ZBX - - 3,729 - - 3,729
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - (17,149) (17,149)
At 31 December 2009  RZ-BEhE
and 1 January 2010 TZR=T-HR
ZE-ZE-f-H 114,380 651,375 35,779 17,346 (510,371) 308,509
Issue of new shares BIHRG 13,729 - - - - 13,729
Placing of new shares ~ EE&H K1 24,424 - - - - 24,424
Exercise of share options 75 IR 1E 11,792 - (2,559) - - 9,233
Allotment and issue of ~ EERETHARRS
rights shares 318,168 - - - - 318,168
Share-based payment  LRHFEXA2EX
expenses - - 2,310 - - 2,310
Release on lapse of BRI K AR AR
share options - - (23,372) - 23,372 -
Early redemption of REBOEMTER
convertible notes 28
payable - - - (20,773) 3,446 (17,327)
Reversal of deferred tax ~ REEREMARRE
upon early redemption  BREEELHE
of convertible notes (H#1i£34)
payable (note 34) - - - 3,427 - 3,427
Dividend paid (note 15 BARE(H15) - (33,063 - - - (33,069)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (8,237) (8,237)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z£+-f
=t-H 482,493 618,312 12,158 - (491,790 621,173
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36. RESERVES (Continued) 36.

The Company (Continued)

Note:

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
as consideration for the acquisition as well as the net
amount transferred from share premium account and
to accumulated losses account pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the special general meeting held on
22 August 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

37. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES 37.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB8 EIEEER AT

el

R aw)

RNF (&)

BRER-ZEZ2=FNA- T RETZREREHR
RELBEBZEIREBR AR A2EHBRER
EARAMBEzMBLARAREEEARM M
BEEFEHEAQAFERBBREZABITRA
ZHERBRAX ROGERERZZTHER
2B ER -

BEERE-AN—FEQEE(EBET) A2 T
CEHBBRET TR - HEMERTHER - 8l
AATRAFBERIRABREREEHBSRTIEL
DK

AFAREIRDREELIEEHIBE
.-

P

RAEETEZREERZEAREEE

iy &2
BEBEITRARRDBER 2B -

FEAS BY B 2 B RRIE

EHHEBATRERREN R ERE
ERMEE -
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38. ADJUSTMENT TO COST OF

COMBINATION IN RESPECT OF AN
ACQUISITION IN PRIOR YEAR

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rich Daily from Well
Will at an initial consideration of HK$504,000,000
(subject to adjustment). Pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement dated 28 February 2008,
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, the ultimate beneficial owner
of Well Will, has irrevocably and unconditionally
guaranteed to the Group that the service fee
income of Rich Daily for each of the 12-month
ending 30 June 2009 and 2010 shall not be less
than HK$72,000,000. In the event that:

(i) the actual service fee income of Rich
Daily for the 12-month ending 30 June
2009 is less than HK$72,000,000, the
initial consideration of HK$504,000,000
shall be adjusted by the shortfall between
HK$72,000,000 and the actual service fee
income of Rich Daily for the 12-month
ending 30 June 2009 multiplied by seven;
and

(i) the actual service fee income of Rich Daily
for the 12-month ending 30 June 2010
is less than HK$72,000,000, Mr. Ng has
undertaken to pay the shortfall between
HK$72,000,000 and the actual service fee
income of Rich Daily for the 12-month
ending 30 June 2010.

As the actual service fee income of Rich Daily
for the 12-month ended 30 June 2009 was
HK$57,224,000, the consideration for acquiring
Rich Daily was adjusted from HK$504,000,000 to
HK$400,566,000 in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreement dated 28 February 2008.
Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain on
adjustment to cost of combination in respect of
an acquisition in prior year of HK$103,434,000
during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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38. RBAEFEETHEZSHRE
AR

R-ZZBEENFNA=-ZTILB x&H
B Well Willlg B Rich Daillyz 23 B
BITIRA - 914 K {8 A 504,000,000 %
T(AIFHRE) RER-_ZFZENF_A
“+NBIIZEBEHE  REHEE
(Well Wil zBREREEA)EFTTH
B R AR it @) AR EEEHE R 0 Rich Daily
REBE-ZZFENEFR=-ZE—ZF XA
StTtAETZEAZSAZREELR LR
72,000,00038 7T © fiff :

() Rich DailyRBEZE=_ZZ L F X
B=+BLhE+=ZEAZERRK
& 4 j472,000,00058 T Bl %
% X {8504,000,0007% jT fE 8 &
72,000,000 & st & Rich Daily A&
E_ZEZAFEAA=THIETZE
BrERRKEsZE2tE &

(i) Rich DailyRBZ—ZF—FF A
=STHLETZ@ERAZERRBED
772,000,000 8 T - R 5EHECDHEE
%14 72,000,000 % 5t & Rich Daily
REBZ-_ZE-FEF<A=+tHL
ToERAZERRBEZEHE -

H A Rich DalyRBZE=_ZZ L F <
A=Z1THLE+=-BRACERRBEES
57,224,000 5t - Wi Rich Daily 218
ERBER-ZFENF_A-+N\RHITX
2 B & 1% % 1 504,000,0008 THAEZE
400,566,000 T - H it > KEBEER
BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLEFE
RBEFEETHREBZSNATAE 2
103,434,00038 7T °
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. &I
Lease commitments HERIE
As lessee ERA-A
At the reporting date, the Group had RZHEH  XEERBER T FIHRZE
commitments for future minimum lease payments HeHEMETTRESCERN2AE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect BREBESEENT :

of rented premises which fall due as follows:

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—EB-EF —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Within one year —FR 2,459 1,836
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FERFE(BEEEME) 4,729 1,703
7,188 3,539
Operating lease payments represented rentals KEHSELAEEARLAEYERES A
payable by the Group for its office premises. LoMANFEFRFYMEHBAEDT M
Leases are mainly negotiated for an average term HEFHIMEBRERE o

of two years and rentals are fixed for an average
of two years.
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 21 January 2002 to
replace the share option scheme adopted on
19 January 2000 and will expire on 20 January
2012. The purpose of the Option Scheme is to
enable the board of directors of the Company to
grant share options to selected eligible persons
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

Under the Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant share options to the
following eligible persons:

(@ () any director or proposed director
(whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-
executive director), employees or
proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of, or

(i) any individual for the time being second
to work for,

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; or

(b) any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; or
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40. URBFEAX N 2R S

RAARAR-BE-F-A-+—-BE#S
BRESTE(ERESS D - LK
R-ZZZF-AThERNZBRE
8 YR -FE-—F-A=-+THE
e BRENSSEERLANTAESET
MEESERATREBREFARS
HAEEEMABZEERMZRBHD
o

REBRETE  ARFESSTAMU
TEERATRHBRE

(@) AEEZEMKE DR EMIZE
RERFEMAZERRREZES 2D F
=

i) FEMEFTHIREES(THH
THHRHITES - BEIASE
MFHITESE) BEHIRE
BE(TWERIFRE) =

(i) EAERESARZAL H

(b) FHEAKEZEFARERAHEM
BRI RRIES 2
NEFFBITEMES AL S
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. UBRMDEAXIN 2R 5 (&)
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(i) any person of entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other
services to,

(i) any supplier, producer or licensor of
films, television programmes, video
features, goods or services to,

(iii) any customer, licensee (including any
sub-licensee) or distributor of films,
television programmes, video features,
goods or services of, or

(iv) any landlord or tenant (including any
subtenant) of,

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or a company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted by the Company under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Option Scheme. Such limit may
be refreshed by shareholders in general meeting
from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Options Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares
in issue from time to time.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ = EFE—FF+=-F =1 —HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issued or to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted
under the Option Scheme and any share option
schemes of the Company to any eligible person
in any 12 months period shall not exceed 1%
of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further
grant in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by shareholders with such eligible
person and his associates abstaining from voting.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company (or any of their associates) must
be approved by independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive directors of the Company (or
any of their associates) in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in
any 12 months period, is required to be approved
by shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

An offer of the grant of share options must be
accepted within 30 days inclusive of the day
on which such offer is made, with a payment
of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors, but in
any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determined

by the board of directors provided that it shall be
at least the highest of:

(a)

the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date on
which a share option is offered to an eligible
person, which must be a business day; and

the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the
date on which a share option is offered to
an eligible person, provided that the exercise
price per share shall in no event be less
than the nominal value of the Company’s
share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. UBRDEAXIN 2R 5 (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of specific categories of share options are BRESTENZFROT !
as follows:
Share
option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BB REE R RHBH TEH TEE
2002 8 March 2002 8 March 2002 to 7 March 2012 HK$244.66*
—EEZFZ=ANH —EE-F=ZANHE 244.668T*
—E-—-"F=H+tH
2004 13 December 2004 13 December 2004 to 12 December 2014 HK$182.54*
TEENF+ZAT=H ZEENF+ZATZ=HEZE 182.54 8"
—E2-mE+=-A+=H
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$44.25*
—EZtF=R=-+=H —EELHF=A=+=HZE 44258 "
—E-tH¥=A=+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$65.87*
—EEtFRA=1+—8H —EZLFHEA=+—HZE 65.87 & L™
—E—tFHA=1H
2007C 11 July 2007 11 July 2007 to 10 July 2009 HK$65.75
—EZtFtA+—H —EZtFtA+—HZE 65.7578 7T
—ZEFEhFLAT+H
2008 20 March 2008 20 March 2008 to 19 March 2010 HK$11.88
—EENF=ZAZ=+H —EEN\F=A=1+HZE 11.887& T
—ZE-ZEF=A+NH
2009A 28 July 2009 28 July 2009 to 27 July 2010 HK$0.64
—EENFEtA=TN\AH —EEAFEARZtNRZE 0.64 7T
—Z2-ZFtA=++tH
2009B 30 October 2009 30 October 2009 to 29 October 2010 HK$0.54*
—EEhFE+A=1H —EENFTA=+HE 0.54#&L*
—E-ZEF+AZtNHE
2010 13 May 2010 13 May 2010 to 12 May 2011 HK$0.60*
—E-ZFHA+T=H —E-ZFHAB+=HZE 0.60&T*

—E-—%HA+=H

*

The exercise prices are adjusted for the rights issue * THEEZER=-Z-ZFALAZTIBEEMK
as completed on 29 September 2010. AR RRAEH TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. RGO EXZF 2R S (4#)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on R-ZE—ZFRA+=H ZZFENEF
13 May 2010, 28 July 2009 and 30 October 2009 tAZt+tNAR=ZZZARF+A=TH
were measured, using a binomial option pricing BEHBEREZAFEDAEE HHH
model, by Grant Sherman Appraisals Limited, BIYEEGEMTHITFEERQBH
an independent firm of professional valuers. The A-EAEEEEXGTE - TRIT
following table lists the inputs to the model used: WMAFTRAER Z2ER :

2009A 2009B 2010
Option life 1 year 1 year 1 year
B g 1 5 HF 15 15 16
Grant date share price HK$0.64 HK$0.60 HK$0.66
REBHRE 0.64 87T 0.60 & 7T 0.66 & T
Exercise price HK$0.64 HK$0.60 HK$0.66
1TEE 0.6438 7T 0.60/& T 0.663& T
Expected volatility (%) 111.18% 111.68% 92.50%
T HA R 0@ (%)
Expected lives of share options 1 year 1 year 1 year
EBRERHFH 16 15 16
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0% 0%
IRE=E (%)
Risk-free interest rate 0.09% 0.14% 0.215%
# [a b Y =
The fair value of the share options granted BE _E-ZEFEN_FEFENE+=-A
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and =+—HIEERHEREANEE
2009 were HK$2,310,000 and HK$3,729,000 2 Bl 52,310,000 T & 3,729,000
respectively which had been expensed as share- T e RERINEUARDERN A 2B
based payment expenses during the years. ¥ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. UBRDEAXIN 2R 5 (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of TREBZEFREARATZES - EERHE
the Company’s share options held by directors, RfTiEECEBRE S .

employees and consultants during the year:

Number of share options

BREZA

Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted at
Share 1 January during during during for rights 31 December
option type 2010 the year the year the year issue 2010
R-2-%F
R-ZE-BF t=A
-A-H AR =t-H
BRESH KA RERRH RERTE REREXH A HATE

(note)

(Hizt)
2002 182,185 - - - 19,755 201,940
2004 264,360 - - - 28,666 293,026
2007A 144,980 - - - 15,721 160,701
2007B 758,743 - - - 82,273 841,016
2008 1,228,789 - - (1,228,789) - -
2009A 11,000,000 - (7,280,000) (3,720,000) - -
20098 11,010,000 - (6,820,000) (4,644,337) 454,337 -
2010 - 13,212,000 (960,000) - 1,328,530 13,580,530

24,589,057 13,212,000 (15,060,000) (9,593,126) 1,929,282 15,077,213

Exercisable at the end of the year
RELFTR 15,077,213

Weighted average exercise price

MEF91TEE HK$7.875/8 7 HK$0.660 %7 HK$0.623;8 7% HKS$2.031/E % - HK$11.511%7
Note: et -

The number of share options is adjusted for the rights BRESERR-Z—ZFFNA-TAARERZ
issue as completed on 29 September 2010. HIREHTE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. UBRMDEAXIN 2R 5 (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of THREEBEFEARAZESE  EE
the Company’s share options held by directors, REREEZEREZSE :

employees and consultants during prior year:

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted Outstanding at
1 January during during during for open 31 December
Share option type 2009 the year the year the year offer 2009
RZZENE
RZBRNF t=A
—-A-H RARBE =t-H
BRESR AT REREL RERTE REREXN frit A% WA
(note)
(Hit)
2002 1,889,326 - - - (1,707,141) 182,185
2004 2,741,511 - - - (2,477,151) 264,360
2007A 1,503,506 - - - (1,358,526) 144,980
2007B 7,868,446 - - - (7,109,703) 758,743
2007C 9,798,342 - (944,840) (8,853,502) -
2008 12,742,999 - - - (11,514,210) 1,228,789
2009A - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
20098 - 11,010,000 - - - 11,010,000
36,544,130 22,010,000 - (944,840)  (33,020,233) 24,589,057
Exercisable at the end of the year
RELRTTE 24,589,057
Weighted average exercise price
MEFITEE HK$6.626/8C  HK$0.620% 10 - HK$65.75;8 7T —  HK$7.875%T
Note: Yoz
The number of share options is adjusted for the open BERESERNR -ZEANFE=ZA=1THEZRZA
offer as completed on 30 March 2009 and the capital BRERNR-_ZBEENFENA-_tT=HRZKZRA
reorganisation as completed on 23 April 2009. BHEHARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. UBRDEAXIN 2R 5 (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following share options granted under the RAFERBERESIARLEUTER

Option Scheme were exercised in the current fE

year:
Number Share price at
Share option type exercised Exercise date exercise date
RITERH
BRESR 2TEHAE TEBRH 2R ER
2009A 5,680,000 28 April 2010 HK$0.88
—E-EFWMAZ=T\H 0.88 & T
2009B 5,830,000 28 April 2010 HK$0.88
—E-EFMA=+N\H 0.88& 7T
2009A 1,600,000 4 May 2010 HK$0.692
—E-ZFHEAWH 0.692 & 7T
2009B 990,000 4 May 2010 HK$0.692
“E-ZEFRAMNA 0.692 7T
2010 960,000 9 June 2010 HK$0.74
ZE-ZFXRANH 0.74 % 7T
15,060,000
At 31 December 2010, the Company had RZE-ZEF+ZA=Z=+—H ' &xA
15,077,213 share options outstanding under the BB 15,077,213 R B R ET AT
Option Scheme (2009: 24,589,057), representing H2EATHEERECZEZE L&
1.37% (2009: 13.07%) of the issued share capital 24,589,057 ) A X B R E B
of the Company at that date. CEBETRA1I7T% (ZZFF Hh & :
13.07%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 41, RIREFIFHE

174

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all the eligible employees of the
Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contribution upon their retirement at
the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42, EXBEAERS
TRANSACTIONS

(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these (a) BRAGEMBEHRREMEAEE
consolidated financial statements, the Group ENh RBE-ZE-—ZFR=-EZE
entered into the following material related hWE+ZA=+—HIEFER &
party transactions during the years ended 31 EEETTIERBEALRS

December 2010 and 2009:

During the year, the Group entered into the FR KNKEBECSELE B Kk
following transactions with the CSEL Group CSFGLEB¥ETTIIRS :

and the CSFGL Group:

2010 2009

—g-%F C—ZINF

Name of company Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
ACIEE RHUE FETT FETT

Paid or payable to:

B RENSIRM ¢

CSEL Salaries
ET - 500
Loan advanced by the Group
AEBZEBNTER - 200,000
Subscription of convertible note
RBABRRKRER - 200,000

Received or receivable from:
2 Y=k e AR R
CSEL Loan repaid
EBEEXR 5,103 200,000
Interest income on:
UTHEEZFEWA :
— loan advanced
BEEFERK - 3,972
— convertible note

TRREE - 1,130

CSFGL Group Promissory note repaid

CSFGL&E BEANE 100,000 —
Convertible note repaid
BETRREE 100,000 —
Loan repaid
BEER 155,536 —
Dividend received
2R E 2,542 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42, EXBEALETRF (#)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation for key management (b) FEEEABHM
personnel
Remuneration for key management FTEEBAEFN(EEFREUEK
personnel, including amount paid to the BRMFIRI2ABEEIL TR
directors of the Company and certain of RNAEBERETEOHFEEZS
the highest paid employees, as disclosed )W -

in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, is as follows:

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Director fees EEHRE 360 360

Salaries and allowances FreRHMERE 1,326 3,412
Contributions to retirement RIKEFIEH B

benefits scheme 44 18

Share-based payment expenses RO M2 839 453

2,569 4,243
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy ratios in order
to support its business and enhance shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years 2010 and 2009.

The Company monitors capital using gearing
ratio, which is the Group’ total borrowings over
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2010 and
2009 were as follows:

43. EXER

EXRABEER

AEEEEEACTEERRRELE
ERELE iDL BEBREETR
ERBLERUAZEEEZEREARRE
=0

AEEEBRAERAEBALBRBEERR
CHFHARE - REBFIAARBRELE
B ARETHEORRIKEZRE
BRREEERN RITHROIBER
EBEEER R-ZE-—ZFR-FZFhH
B AEECEAEERR  BHXIRE
AR RE -

ARBRABBLER(WAKREREER
UARD AR AR BRET -
—E-EFER=FFEAFFTZ=A=T—
AzafELENT

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Convertible notes payable FEft AT iR BB - 54,563
Equity attributable to owners of the  AQ T A AL

Company fR fE 1,344,663 1,371,044

Gearing ratio BEkE - 4.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, €WMITH
Categories of financial instruments ST EZER
2010 2009
—EB-BF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables (including ERREWFIE(EHE
cash and cash equivalents) RERBEZED) 996,701 496,415
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEECEMEE 53,892 172
Financial assets at fair value through AP EFABERZ
profit or loss SREE 9,418 —
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost B AR 10,872 65,240
Financial risk management objectives and BERREEEERBE

policies

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
These risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. ERIT A (%)

Financial risk management objectives and HHRAREEEERBEKR(EF)
policies (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (a) GGEEE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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AEEMAZHREF S RBRET
ERMEERAEE LR FIEL
ZEaFERRAENGESFHRR
RIVIEBECHRAEREEZRE
o

REERKEERR  FAEEERE
EeREEE M AEEEERFER
B FEMERHEMEERRF U
BERERDMATTHREASRE
e o AEERNE /PR
AN EEBEE 2 U EEEE - LU
REFMT A WESFEEL T2 RE
BFBR -BUMSE  NARAESERA
FEEZzFERBEENRR -

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % E& 1% & B R A7)

179




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. ERT A (#E)

BERABREEEERBEK(E)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) FEEZEE
AEBEBERAEZRBEESER

BITEBHARET UEEBER
E2ERK -

The Group manages its liquidity risk
by ensuring it has sufficient liquid cash
balances to meet its payment obligations as
they fall due.

AEEEBEBARTREMRRAME
liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position RYERHEASZ o RBESRERE -
AEBTEMBRHEERB 2R
ERAUBHERREMES - XF
BEXHMFERES MAEEZ
ﬁ%miﬁmﬁiﬁ$ﬂ%@’ﬁ
BHMEZERBESREM ZFTE -

The Group closely monitors its exposure to

report monthly. The Group mainly relies on
cash inflow from provision of management
services to fund its operations. The Group
has sufficient cash on hand and also has
alternative plans to monitor liquidity risk
should there be significant adverse changes
on the Group’s cash flow projections.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities based

TRAVNAEEREFITESRE
BZBRTENEMA - ZRCRE
BERAEEWERINZEREAHZ
cRBERITEREREMER -
ZREFENERFEHRERE °

on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. ERIT A (%)

Financial risk management objectives and HEEKMEEEERBEKR(EZ)
policies (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) "EELEE(E)
3 months
Less than 1to3 to1year 1to5 Over
1 month months =f8A years 5 years Total

YR-BA -2=fA E-f -ERf EENLE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TEx TET TET TET TEx TET

2010 —E-BF
Continuing operations BELEEH
Accruals and other EERREM

payables FEfFE 10,872 - - - - 10,872
2009 “EENE
Continuing operations FELEER
Accruals and other EHERRHM

payables AN 10,200 - - - - 10,200

(c) Price risk (c) ERXEE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk AEEFEEBEHIFMRAEFESR
mainly through its investment in listed EMASRAERER - SEEU
equity securities. The management manages TRRBREBEEZRELASE
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of A IE o

investments with different risk and return

profiles.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. ERT A (#E)

Financial risk management objectives and HERAREEEERBEKR(EZ)
policies (Continued)
(c) Price risk (Continued)

(c) E#mEEE)

R BB BE AT

Equity price sensitivity analysis

(d)

The sensitivity analyses below have been LT BRE DM IIRERRSER
determined based on the exposure to ZRAEHRBABEEMERE - B8
equity price risk at the end of the reporting BRESNMES ARERM™ER

period. For sensitivity analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate is increased to 15% in
the current year as a result of the volatile
financial market.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/lower
(2009: Nil):

— Post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2010 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,413,000 (2009: Nil).
This is mainly due to the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments;
and

— other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$8,058,000
(2009: Nil) as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as follows.

— The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A A

(d)
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— BEZZ-ZFE+=-A=+-
BlEEEZAREERBEBET
#8084 1,413,000 58 7T
(ZZEZNE &) TEHR
BFEBERECAFEZEAT
:Btj(o

— Htt2EKEH&EN R

8,058,000 B T(ZEZNF :

#) FEHRNAUHEERE
Z’ASFE FBYFTEL o

TETEAEZNFE

THEEREHABEZAFEEN
THAERE :

— SEERIRBHERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44, EWMIT R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HHRAREEEERBEKR(EF)

policies (Continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (d) £@TAZARFEE)

(Continued)

The fair values of derivative
instruments are calculated using
quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash
flow analysis is performed using
the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-
optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.
Foreign currency forward contracts
are measured using quoted forward
exchange rates and yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts.
Interest rate swaps are measured at
the present value of future cash flows
estimated and discounted based on the
applicable yield curves derived from
quoted interest rates.

The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. ERT A (#E)

Financial risk management objectives and BERREEBEERBEK(E)
policies (Continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (d) £@MTHAZLFEGE)
(Continued)
Except as detailed in the following table, the BRTRFLEN  ESAANEGS
directors consider that the carrying amounts EBERAEREEREMEEZ
of financial assets and financial liabilities EREEEAEANFEHEE

recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values:

2010 2009
—E-%% —EENE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

EREE AFE REE S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT FET FET

Financial assets CRMEE
Available-for-sale financial AIftHESREE

assets 53,892 53,920 172 172
Financial assets at fair value A FEABH XK

through profit or loss ZEMERE 9,418 9,418 — —
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5 & B 35 3R R B 6

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

— Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

— Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

Annual Report 2010 — T —T4EE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Bt2 =ZFE—FF+-F =+ —HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44, EWMIT R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HERAREEEERBEKR(EZ)

policies (Continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (d) £@TAZARFEE)

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

BRRG AN BRRES A TFE

BE(/F)

(Continued)

TRERUAXFESRRIFER

The following table shows an analysis of

financial instruments recorded at fair value eI EDH :
by the fair value hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F28k ERE @at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE FET FET

At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF
+ZA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value IAFEFTABHEXR
through profit or loss ZERMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 7,650 - - 7,650
— Listed derivatives — EHHTETIA 1,768 - - 1,768
Available-for-sale financial A HESREE
assets 53,720 - - 53,720
At 31 December 2009 RZEZENF
+ZHB=+—H
Conversion options W BREEs
embedded in convertible AE R
notes receivable BIERE - - 18,316 18,316

MER - RBI1 K2z EIEER -

There were no transfers between Levels 1
and 2 in the both year.
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46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 & B 35 3R R B 6

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 —ZF—FF+_-H=+—HI-FE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 21 January 2011, the Company and CSEL
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant
to which CSEL has conditionally agreed to issue
and the Company has conditionally agreed
to subscribe or procure subscription for the
convertible bonds in the maximum principal
amount of HK$650,000,000 in two tranches
at their face value. The convertible bonds are
unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum
and maturing on the fifth anniversary of the
date of their issue. The convertible bonds carry
rights entitling the Company to convert their
principal amount into shares in CSEL at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.08 per share
(subject to adjustment). The subscription and the
conversion of the convertible bonds are subject
to the shareholders’ approval. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 9 February 2011
for details.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 March 2011.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBEME
For the years ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t+-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-ZF CEZENF ZEENF CETtFE CZEERE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E50) (B50)
Results ES
Turnover EER 78,200 74,711 19,253 7,722 9,375
(Loss)/profit from REFELSEERK Y
continuing operations (B18),/ &7 (353,053) 415,731 (107,240 (44,749) (11,484)
Finance costs MEEH (3,041) (8,086) (3,350) - (9,615)
(Loss)/profit before BRBiAT(BEB),EF
taxation (356,094) 407,645 (110,590) (44,749) (21,099)
Income tax (expense)/ BE(ZH) e
credit (363) 14,493 13,854 - (195)
(Loss)/profit for the REFESEERKY
year from continuing rEE(EFR)/
operations @Al (356,457) 422,138 (96,736) (44,749) (21,294)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ REERILKEEK Y
from discontinued KEE(FE),/
operation g - (5,576) (127,772) 70,443 -
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ AFE(EFE),/&EH (356,457) 416,562 (224,508) 25,694 (21,294)
Dividends B & 33,063 - — — -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-ZF CZEENFE  ZEENE CZEZtFE CZEERE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(B5) (B51)
Total assets EEHE 1,397,404 1,480,772 1,524,280 1,542,452 922,228
Total liabilities BELE (52,741) (109,728) (629,857) (492,476) (518,696)
Total equity g £k 1,344,663 1,371,044 894,423 1,049,976 403,532
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